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KENYA DAIRY BOAR,D
ANNUAL REPIORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JIJNE 2023

A. Acronymi. Abbrcvhtloni strd Gloitrr] ofTarmt

A. Acronymr rnd Abbr.vl.doD.
ADA
AIE
AU-IBAR
BETA
CBK
CDF
CEO
ctF
COMESA
CPA
CSR

DDA
DC
EAC
EBS

ERP

FAO
FY
GHC
ICPAK
IDF
IFAC
IPSAS
KAM
KCB
KDB
KENAS
KEPSA
KMR
KNAC
KRA
KSHS
KUSCO
MBA
MD
MSMES
NDDB
NSSF

NT
OAG
ocoB
ocw
OSHA
PFM
PPE

PSASB
PWDs
SACAs
scAc
UHT
USAID

Alcohol and Drug Abuse

Autho.ity ro lncur Exp€nditure
Africsn Union - Interafrican Bureau for Animal Resources

Bofl om-up Transfonnativc Agenda
Central Bank ofKenya
Conslituency Devcloprncnt Fund
Chief Executive Oflicer
Cost. Insumc. and Frci8ht
Comfton Market for Eastcm and Southcm Africa
Cenifi ed Public Accountanl
Corporate Social Rcsponsibility
Dairy Developrient Authority. USanda
Director Gencral

East African Conunuinity
Eldcr of thc Order of thc BuminS Spear
Entcrpaise Rcsourca Planning
Food and Agriculturc Ortanisation
Financial Ycar
Green Housc Gas

lnstitutc of Certifi ed Public Accountants of Kcnya
lntemational Dairy FedeEtion
lntemational Federation of Accountants
Intemational Public S€ctor Accounring Standards
Kenya Association of Manufactulers
Kenya Corffnercial Banl
Ken)€ Dairy Board

Kenya Accrrditation Servica

Kenya Privatc Sector Alliance
Keny8 Milk Records

Ken;rr National Assurancc Company
Key Rasuh Ar€a

Kenya Shillings
Kenya Union ofSavrnts and Credit Co-operatives
Mastcr of Business AdminisEation
ManaSinS Dircctor
Micro. Srlall and M.dium Sized Enterpnscs

National Dairy Dcvclopmcnt Board, India
Nationdl Social S€cudty Fund

National Treasury

Oflice of thc Auditor ceneral
Office of thc Controller of Budgel
Ordcr of the Grand Warrior
Occuparional Safety and H.alth Acr of2007
Public Financ. Managem.nr
Propcrty Pl6nt & Equiprncnr

Public Sector Accounting Standrrds Board
Pe6ons with Disabilities
Scmi-Autonoftous Covemmcnt ASencics

Slatc Corporarion Advisory Corffninea
Ultra Heat Treated

Unitcd States Agency for Inremltional Dcvelopment

B: Glo$rry of Termr

Flduciary MrnaScmant - Members ofManagemcnt dirccdy ensEustcd with lhe rcsponsibility of financial resources of the organisation

Comprratlve Ye.r - Means rhe prior period.
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IIAIRY BOARI)
RXFORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IIIE YEAT ENDED 30 JI,IIIE 2023

IOANDS INFORMATION AIID MANAGEMENT

lnforn do,
Boitd ,rt Gctsbli3hcd ir 1958 rhrough sn Act of PlllisrDcll! Thc Dairy lndustry Act, Clp 336. Thr Boad ii domicil.d in Kcnyi

Hncbal tufidtlc.
Dldat! of lhc Bo.rd is to Rcguhtc, Prormt ard Dc'valop lhc D.iry lrdu3Ey i, K.nys.

Kay MErg.ECrt
Boerdt dry b dly M.n8Scmcr is undcr the Bosd of DiEcto6, Mlnlgirrg Dirlcto., Dircctor - Rcgulrtory Scrvic6, Dittctot - Co4orstc

FiEac. Mamg6, Managcr - I cnul Ar.dir rnd th! Principrl Swply Chain Mrlugqncd OfEc.r

ndud[y M.n.1.6.!t
tcy nraugcmrt pcrsonncl who heH offic. during th. Iinsncid yrrr qdad 30 Junc 2021 srd s,ho hld dirlcl fidrrcilry Esponsibility wct :

DG.lgBd.r
Mr!.gi!8 DiFctor
Dircct6, Rrgulatory Serviccs

DirrcE, Coryor.tc Scrviccs
Finrocc Mraagcr
MamSar - htcm.l Audit
Principal $pply Chain ManaScmcnt OfTiccr

ndlcbry Ov.rrhha Am.!8GEGtrt

CoLEllt . ofth. Bo.rd
Kip&och Kibusic '

w. Xrriihi .
Pkqrtoi lmribong

,oshu! CtlPchi.ng
Kiptirui Ko.os "

Lrrio0h Pulci "
WanSrtr Mbuthia 't

. nllitld l0 Fcbru8ry 2023

- AppoirEd I0 Fcbruary 2023

hucc rd Phuhg CoEEltlc. of lhc Bofd
i.y Mugo Xrugi '
Elshon Mernzigh. Mngoda *

D. Iochur Cicpchicag
CDA Jondr Wah
Li& (Rd) Joo?h Krtruu Mbunl "
Jasaphinc Mor.a OrnEnws t'
hnrrE Abdi Hrji rr

. R.tiEd l0 flblurry 2023
* Appoirtrd l0 F.bruary 2023

lHrlcrl Lhcrdng rrd M.rkcdrg Cooulttcc of tb. Botd
fllocth Mrituci Thimba i
CPA. Ksrtlcdy cathcru .
f(aic| W. Klrihhi .
Ir*ina Kiwvrni r
X6cy I(rrirri Mbogo r*
Abtrh6m KhH RWut "
Edi Wrttgrr! Mbuthia ..
,ot phine llbria Ornrnwa *r
th" Gtd) Jor+h Iomru Mburu ..

t R.airld l0 F.bnuly 2023

- Appoirtld I 0 F.bruary 2023

NrEc
M.rg$ct Ru$rt Kibo$r
Dr. willirm K. Maritim
Pctlr Mutua
Edv.rd Nyoitc
Elrstus Mutiso
Dorodry OrMino

lll



KENYA DAIRY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 30 JIJNE 2023

KEY BOARD'S INFORMATION AND MANAGf,MENT (Conthucd)

Humrtr Ralource rnd AdEi[lrtraato! CodDlttae oflhc Board
Mukina Kivuvani '
Kcnneth Msilarn€i Thimb. .
Dishon Mwuzide Mryods .
Kcnneth Pkemoi l.ornaibong
Fatuma Abdi Hsji **
Gabriel lrrior*a Pulci .'
Abrahem KiplclRugut ..
Mcrcy Karimi Mbogo t.
4 Rclired l0 Fcbruary 2023
.. Appoinrcd l0 February 2023

(f) K.tryr Drlry Bo.rd Hc.dqu.rt.n
Ncw lrrcsho Estate, Off Waiyaki Way - Upper Kebcte
P.O. Box 30406
cPo 00100
Nairobi. KenyE

e) Contacr
Telcphonc: (020) 310559, 341 302. 0133 521 438. 0722 51 3432
E-mail: info@kdb.co.kc
Website: \r"*,\r. kdb.co. ke

(h) Brnl.n
KCB Bank Kcnya Limitcd
Milimani Branch, NSSF BuildinS
P.O. Box 69695

Tom Mboya 0(N00
Nairobi, Kcnya.

Cc.operative Bank of Kcnya Limited
Upper Hill Branch, KUSCO Centrc, KilinEnj6ro Road

P.O. Box 4t231
City SquaE 00200
Nairobi. Kcnye

National Bank ofKenya Limited
Harambee Avcnue Branah
P.O. Box 72866

City Squarc 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

(t) IndepcDdeDt Audltor
Auditor - Ccn.ral
OIfice ofthc Auditor Grneral
Anniversary Towers. Univcrsity Way
P.O. Box 30084
cPo 00100
Nairobi, K.nya

0) Prlncip.l L.3.l Advl..r
The Attomry Gcneral

Stat. l^aw Otfic. and DcpartnEnt ofJustice
Haramb€a Avclrue
P. O. Box 401 l2
City Squarc 00200
Nairobi. K.nya
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Crencsio Njagi Mugo
Chairman

Margarer Ru8ul Kibogy. OGw
CEO/Secretary to the Board

Bri8. (Rtd.) Joseph K. Mburu. EBS

Gencsio Njagi Mugo $as bom in 1970 and joined the Board as an indcpendenl Direclor and Chairman lo thc

Board on l0 February 2023 Ile brings on board ovcr 26 years experience in business and trading pan which

he workcd with petroleum muhinationals namelyi Callex Kenya Limiled and Kenya Shell Limiled. where he

managcd various ponfolios including lead intemational Petroleum lradinS and cxports. stakeholders and

govemment relations management as well as manaSing supply operations. lle is a member of KEPSA

GovcminS Board. KEPSA vice Chair Encrgy. Exlractives and Peroleum scclor Board and KAM Chair of
Encrgy and Petroleum Sector Board. Chainnan emcntus of ShiPpers Council of Easl Africa as well as formcr

Board member and Chair of Finance and Siralegy Cornmittee. KeDya Ferry Services. lle is a holder of Bachelor

of Sciencc in Tourism. Moi Universily and cunenlly pursuing Masteni in Busincss Administralion (MBA) al

Kenyatta University.

Margaret Rugut Kibogy was bom in l97l and appoinled in May 2016 as lhe Managing Director. Kenya Dairy

Board. Ms. KiboSy brinSs on board experiencc in Business Growth. Managemsnt and MarkelinS having served

in rhc Banking Industry in various capacilics. She is hiShly skilled in NeSotialion. Business PlanninS.

Analyical Skills. Risk Managemenl. and Customcr Service. She holds Mastcr of Business Adminislralion
(MBA), Marketing from University of Nairobi.

Brig. (Rtd.) Joseph Kamau Mburu was bom in 19ff and joined the Board as an independent Director on I0
February 2021. IIe is a retired Senior Mililary Officer wilh vast experience in personnel matlers. public finance

managemcnt and public procurement as cvidenced by various appoinlmenls in lhe Kenya Defence Forces and

Ministry of Dcfcnce. He is the current chainnan of Kenya Defence Forces Pay and Allowances Review Board

as has previously served as lhe Managing Director. lhe Defence Forces Medical Insurance Scheme. Chicf of
Personnel. Kenya Airforce and Base Finance Officer. Laikipia Air Base. IIe has undcrSonc cxtensive lmining

both locally and intemarionally and hc is a holder of Bachclor Degree in Business ManaScmenl of Easl African
Univcrsity as well as Bachelor and Masters ot Arts Degrees in Intemalional Sludics and Diplomacy bolh from

Washington lntemational Univcrsily.

I Mercy Karimi Mbogo was bom in 1989 and joined lhe Board as an independenl Dircclor on l0 February 2023.

She brinSs over thirteen years of expcrience in animal husbandry. produclton. mana8emenl. sales and

marketing. She has previously worked wrlh Farmers Choice Company Limited as a Pi8 Unit Manager. Kenbrid

Farms Limited as Sales Represenlalive and Field Officer and cunently working with Bidco Africa Limiled as a

Sales and Technical Lead in Nairobi Region. She holds Diploma in Animal Produclion from Bukura

Agricuhural College.

Faluma Abdi Sanweine was bom in 1976 and joined lhe Board as an independenl Direclor on l0 February

2023. She brings in weahh of experiencc in business developmenl. manaSemeni. lrade development, projecl

management as \,\'ell as hurnan resource rnaDagemenl. She is a holdcr of Bacheloas Degree in Business

Administrarion (Human Resource ManaSement option ofEast African Univcrsity. Shc has previously sen'ed as

a Loans Omcer. woman Concem - caflssa. Carissa Tou'nship constiluency Roads Cornmitte€ member.

Commitlce mcmber - Garissa Township CDF and a Nominatcd Member. County Asscmbly ofGarissa.

Mike Kipkirui Koros was bom in 1978 andjoined the Board as an independcnl Director on I0 February 2023.

llc is a holder of Bachelor of Education (Aas) from Maseno University and currcnlly pursuing a Master's

Degree Course at Kabian8a University. IIc is currently a Senior Adminislralive Officcr al the Universily of
KabianSa in char8e ofSenate Secrelarial and a community leader who spearheaded the revival ofKabianga Co-

operarive Socrety leading ro the revolulion oI Dairy farming in Kericho Counly. Ile is also serving ar the

Chainnan. Kabianga Farmers Co-operatilc Society Limited. a Member of thc Board of Managemenl.
( hepuiyet Girls Secondary School and Chairman Kapsiya Catholic Church.

Mercy Karimi Mbogo

Fatuma Abdi Sanweine

.{

Mike Kipkirui Koros
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('PA. Jonah Wala

I)r. Joshua Ch!'pchieng. HSC

Kcnncth P. Lomaibong

(irbricl Lcrionka Pulei

Eclh $'nngare Mburhia

Dr. Abraham Kiplel Rugul

( PA Jon h Wala was bom rn 1969 and joincd thc Board as alrernate Direclor lo lhc Principal Secrctary. the
Nalion lTreasury and Economic PlanninB on lothMay20l7. He is an accomplishcd llnancc consuhtng leader
wrth nrorc lhan l8 years expcriencc leidin8 c()ss-funclional teams in dehvcring value fbr moncy in both
pri\alc and public-seclor enterprises. Ilc is a nrcrnbcr of ICPAK and IFAC. Jona i\ cunently rhe Acting
Dirccor. Accounting Scn'ices ar the National Treasurv and Planning. Jona holds a Mtncrs in Banking and
Financc Dctelopmenl liom Giordano Dcl Aniorc Uni\crsity in llaly. and a Bnchelors of Ans degree tn
Malhcnmtics and Economics from Egenon (,hrvcrsiry.

Dr. Joshau Chrpchrcng was bom in 196{ and joincd lhc Board as altemalc Direcrcr lo rhe Principal Secrehry.
Stalc l)cpan,ncnt for Livestock Dcvclopnrcnl - Minislry ofAgriculture and Li\csrock l)evclopmeDr in August
20: l. Ilc is an Adminisrator and a Lcadcr \r'ith ovcr 25 years ofexpcncnce in public adminrslrarion. where he
has scrvcd as Districl Commissioner rn nu,ncrous slations and scrvcd in vaflous adnrinistration roles in a

number of Ministries. Dr. Joshua is cuftcntlv thc Direclor in charge of Adnrinistralion. Slale Depanmenl for
Liycslock undcr rhe Ministry of Agriculturc. Livcstock. Fisheries and ('oopcrativcs. IIe is a holder of a

I)ocloratc Degree in Project Planning nnd Managcrncnl. Maslcr of Ans in ProJcct Irlanning and Managemenr
(MAPPM) and Bachclor of Arrs (B.A Ilons) all liom rhe Universiry of Nairobi. IIc is a mcmbcr of Kenya
As\mialion ol I'ublic Adminrsrration and ]t{anage,ncnr (KAPAM).

Vr Kcnnclh P. Lonraibong u as bom in l96l and joincd thc Board as an rndcpcndcnt DirDcbr on l-l July 20f2.
I lc is currcntly scn ing as lhe chainnan of Lclnn I lighland Dairy Limitcd. I Ic is also a mcmber of Wesl Pokol
counly Bud8cr and economy. Northcm (orridor Pcacc and Conflicl Rcsolulion Foruor and scnes as Board
nlc,nbcr Iir a numbcr ofSchools.

(labricl Lcrionka Pulci was bom in 1977 .rnd Joincd rhe Board as an indcpendenr Di.ccror on l0 February
20:.1 IIc is an cxpen in spiritual coun\clling. cducation. mcnlorship and is commitled lo shepherding
inditiduals to Christ. engaSinS thc colnnrunrty rn missronary \r'ork and community outreach as \rell as

lbnnularinS srraregics for long-tcrm opcralional 8oals. lle has previously scncd as ( harnnan of lhc Boird of
\lanaScornr. Olke,Juado High School irnd nre,nbcr of rhe Commitlec. Nalional Colcmment Consl[ucncy
Delcbpmcnt Fund - Kajiado Cenrral. llc is a holder a Diploma in (hristian Ministry from Thaapnat
lnlcmalional School of Minislry and Bachelor of Ans in Bible and Theolo8y of Pan African Christian
Unircrsitv.

Bcth Wan8arc Mbuthia was bom in l9q0 and joincd the Board as an indcpendcnt Director on l0 February
:011. Shc is a protissional uirh (r\er I0 ycars of progressive cxpcricncc in dairy lirming. communit],
devclopnrcnt. projcc! managemenr and conl'licr rcsolurion. She has hcld variour posrlions in lhc Church and

comnrunily \rhcrc she is currenrly senin8 rs a Board member. Mianzini Prinury School and Sccrctar, to
Prcsblcrian Church ofEasr Al'rica (P( EA). Raliki Church in Turi Pariah. Elburgon PrcsbIcry.

Dr. Abrnham Kiplel Rugur was bom in I95l :rnd joincd rhe Board as an indcpcndcnl I)irector on l0 February
2021 llc is a trarncd teacher by prd'ession and a holder of an Honorary Doc$ratc [)cgrce in Leadership
(llononr (ausa) liom Univcrsiry of Amcrica llc has served in various capacitics in thc cducarion seclor
including Ilcad Teacher lo Kimogoch Prinury School and IIead Teacher Kanmiywo Prcpiratory and Boardin8
School. lh is lhe founder and currcnl ( hairman to Nandi Dairy Co-opcrativc Union and Kabiyet Dairics
(i)opcrativc Socicry Limited.

Jos!'phrnc N'loraa Omanu'a $ar bom in 197: Joincd lhc Board as an indepcndcnt I)ircctor on I0 Fcbruary 1021.

Shc i5 an accomplshed professional $ilh o\cr l5 ycars of expenencc rn adminrslration and operations
riuna8entnl. Shc is highly skilled in dirccling tcam\ in deliyering cxceplional \cn'icc and ad!'ancement oftop-
lc,'cl obrcctrvr's. She is the currcnt National ( hair. Kenya Bookscllers and Stationcrs Ass(rcralion and an astutc
enlreprcncur currently operaling Jonzi\rkc Pflntcrs Slalioners and Bookshop. Shc is lhc lbunder Nyamira
(irunty Wido$s Association and also scncd in lhc Board of Managemenl for Ccsra8a Sccondary School and

Nynchururu Sccondary School.

Joscphinc M()raa Omanwa. HSC
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Dr. lSnatius Kahiu
Chairman

CPA. Kenncdy Galheru

Lrte Monicah Kariithi

Phil'p Kipkocch Kibusie

Dishon Mwanzi8he Mngoda

Dr. lgnatius Kahiu was bom in 1956 and joined lhc Board as an independenl Direclor and Chainnan lo the

Board on 1.3 July 2022 till his retirement on l0 Fcbruary 20?3. He is a Senior Leader who has bcen working lo

improvc inclusive and sustainable growth in Kenya and East Africa for more lhan lhrcc dccades. Dr. Kahiu is a

Vercrinarian by lraining and a holder of an MSc. in OrSanrzational Development. Ile is an activc nlember of a

numbcr oivelcrinary professional associations and has had lhc privilege to represent Aliica as a vice President

in the world velerinary Association and has been aclive in a knowledge managemcnt and rcsearch think tank

wrlhin thc IGAD (lntergovemmenlal Aulhority for Dcvelopment) regional framework to cnd drought

emcrBcncies in the Hom ofAfrica. Dr. Kahiu is also member ofthe Board ofDireclors ofASNET (ABricultural

Scctor Nct*'ork) and chair of ils lmplemcnlalion. MonitorinS and Leaming Commillcc and has also sen'cd as

Ihc Board Mcmbcr and laler the Chairman for lhc New Kenya Cooperative Creamerics (NKCC) since

September 1018.

( PA. Kcnncdy Gathcru was bom rn l97lt and joincd thc Board as an independenl Dircctor on Il July 1022 lill
his rctirqmenr on l0 February 2021. fle has over 20 yean cxperience in managemenl. tlnancc and accounling

ficlds. Ilc has rendered assurance and advisory scrviccs ro several companies acros\ diffcrcnt industries in thc

rcgion and rn United Kingdom. He has workcd for Pricewatcrhousecoopers in Kenya and in lhe UK. He is

currently scrving in a senior managcment posilion in a leading Fast Moving Consu,ncr Coods company in lhe

rcgion. Ilc holds a Bachelor of Commerce dc8rec liom the University of Naircbi and is ! nlember of lhe

Institute ol( ertified Public Accounranls ol Kenyn.

Mrs.MonrcahKariithi$asbomin1947andjornedlhcBoardasanindependcnlDirecloronllJuly201-ltill
her relirement on l0 February 2023. She graduated liom Lorelo Convenl Limuru in 1966 and Kianda

Secrctarial (-ollege in 1968. Shc is a seasoncd communrty leader in mobrlizalron of resourccs and emporaermenl

of cornnrunity. She is rhe founder of Kinma Slopcs Dairy where she is currenlly sen'in8 as the Coordinalor.

She has also held various posirions in the Church where she is currently sen'ing as the vice Chair - Anglican

Church of Kenya. Kirhiru Parish. She has a bt of expcrience in busrness panrcularly in dairy larmrng arnong

olhcrs.

Mr. Philip Kibusic was bom in 1956 andJoined rhc Board as an independent Dircctor on l3 July 2022 till his

rctircmenlonl0February202S.HeisthcCurrent(-hairmanofSirikwaDairiesandhasc\tcn\ivec\Pcrienccin
Conscn,alion. Production Management and Rcsource Management u,ilh emphasis on Applicd lnnovation. tle
holds Diplorna in Technical Education (Mechanical Engineering) from Kenya TechnicalTcachers ColleSe. He

has wealth of e)(perience in rnanagemenl. dairy l'arming and products having 
"\orked 

wilh \arious slakeholders

in the d6iry indusrry.

Mr. Dishon M. MnSoda was bom in 1959 and joined the Board as an independent Dircclor on ll July 2022 lill
his retiremcnt on l0 February 2023. IIe holds Masters Degree in Education from EScnon University. a

Bachelor of Education from the Univcrsiry of Nairobi and is currently a candidale lor the Doctors of
Philosophy in Education Psychology. Moi Univcrsity. lle brings on board wide knowledSe and cxperience in
resourcc managemcnt. adminislration and rescarch. Ilc has previously served as thc Dean of Studenls in

Kabarak Univcrsily (Nakuru Town Campus). Dean of Srudents at Taila Ta\cta Univcrsity. Studenl Counsellor
and Assistanl Lccrurer at -\_arok University ('ollegc and pan time Lecturer in a number of Public and Privale
tJniversities

Mr. Roy M. Kaugi was bom in 1965 and Joincd lhc Board as an independent Direclor on l3 July 202: till his

rctiremcnl on l0 February 2021. He is a trained Accountanl and brin8s on board wide expcricnce in

Accounlancy and ManaSemenl. He has prcviously sen'ed as a Supervisor in Financc & Accounting
Dcpartrnent. (o-operative Bank of Kenya Limited. Chief Executive Officer. Murata Savings & Credil Co-
operativc Socicty Limiled. ManaginS f)irector - Fosa Management Consultants Linrilcd and an Audilor with
Kimani Onyancha & Company. Certified Public Accounlants of Kenya. amonS olher consuhancies in
managcrncnt and lraining.

/

Roy Mugo Kaugi
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Mukina Ki!uvani

Kenncrh Mailamei Thimba

Ms. Mukina Kir,uvani was bom in 1964 and joined lhe Board as an independent Director on l3 July 2022 till
her retiremenl on I0 February 2023. She is a lrained Business Coach and a Consultant and brings on board ovcr
J9 years of experience in helpin8 business owners develop. maintain and achieve their goals. She ha5

successfully coached and trained in various counries including the United Arabs Emirates. Tanzania and

Kenya and lhis has over the years helped various playcrs in Beauty Industry in concept creation. operational
suppon. fiErkel research as well as performance measurement. She has previously served as a Board member of
Tanalhi Waler Works Development Agency. She is currently serving as Consultanl with Fairmount M!. Kenya
Safari Club and Managing Direclor. Intemational lnsriture ofCosmetology.

Mr. Kenneth Thimba was bom in 1970 and joined the Board as an independent Direclor on ll July 2022 tillhis
retircmenl on l0 February 2023. He holds a Master ofBusiness Administmtion in Marketing from the Catholic
University ofMurcia. Spain. a Postgraduate Diploma in Business Administmtion of Wcstford Educalion Croup
as well as a Postgraduate Diploma in Or8anisational Leadership from Chanered Managemenl lnstiiure (UK).
[re is an expen in the development and execulion ofstralegic business plans wilh proven success in sales team

leadership. lle is a retired Board member of Anti-Dopin8 Associalion of Kenya. llead of Marketing and

Business Development at APA Insurance Limited. Vice President Sales at Aquaviia LLC. Nairobi and clrrenrly
Chief Exccutive Officer and Lead Consultanr at Sales Resource Africa. Kenya.

v t
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M8rgarel Rugul Kibogy. OCW

CEOt/anaging Direclor

Margaret Rugut KiboSy was appoinled in May 2016 as lhe ManaginS Direcror. Kenya Dairy Board. Ms.

Kibogy brinSs on borrd expcrience in Busrness Growlh. Managemenl and MarketinS havinS servcd in lhe

Banking lndustry in various capacities. Shc is hiShly skilled in NeSoliation. Business Planning. Analrlical

Skills. Risk Mana8cment. and Cuslomer Scrvice. She holds Maslcr of Busincss Adminislration (MBA).

MarkelinS from Universily ofNairobi. She has also attended lhe StralcSic Lcadership Detelopmenl Programme

at Kenya School of(;ovemment.

Peter Mutua holds Bachelor of Ans Sraduate from the Univcrsily of Nairobi. Mr. Mutua has underSone

extensive professional training in the fields ofhuman resource. administralion. quality manaSernent syslems and

corporate govemancc. He has also attended Scnior ManaSemenl Counie and Strate8ic Leadership Development

Programme from Kcnya School of (iovemment. IIe has over 20 years experience in the area of human

resourccs and administralion garncd bolh in thc public and pnvate seclors-

Dr. Kimutai holds a Bachelor of veterinary Medicine degree and Mastcrs of Sciencc in Velerinary

Epidemiology degree both from Univcrsity ofNairobi. Ilas atlended Senior Management Course and SlrateSic

Lcadership Development Programme from Kenya School of Govemmenl. IIc is a membcr ofKenya Veterinary

Associalion and rcgistcred wilh Kenya Veterinary Board. He has over 24 yeani work €xperience in public

scrvice as velerinary and food safety officer. Fonner Chairperson. Codex ( ommittee for Africa (CCAFRICA)

rcgion-

( PA. Ed*ard Nyoike holds Bachelor of Agribusincss ManaScmenl (Egenon University). Masler of Business

Administration (MBA) - Operalions Managemenl from Universily of Nairobi. Cenificd Public Accounlant.

CPA (K) and Cenified Intemal Auditor (CIA). IIas allended Senior Managemcnl Course and Slralegic

L€adership Developmcnt ProSramme from Kenya Schoot of Govemment. He is a member of lhc lnstiule of
( enified Public AccounranG of Kenya (ICPAK) and lnstitule oflntcmal Auditors. Kenya Chapter. IIe has over

l5 years' experiencc in rnanagement. audil. finance. tax and accounling fields.

Erastus Mutiso holds Bachelor of Commerce in Finance from Universtty of Soulh Africa (UN"!SA). ( ertificd
Fraud Examiner (CFE). Cenified Forensic lnvestigation Professional (CFIP). Forensic and lnvestigative

Auditor (F&lA) and Cenified Intemal Auditor (ClA). Has atlendcd Scnior Mana8cmenl Coursc (SM( ) and

Straregic Leadership Development Programme (SLDP) from Kenya School of Covemmenl. IIe is a rnernber of
the Association of Cenified Fraud Examiners{ACFE). lnstitulc of Cenificd Forensic Investigation Profcssional
( IICFIP) and lnsrirure of Inremal Auditors. (llA) Kenya Chapter.

Dorothy O*ino holds a Bachelor of Educalion Degree and a Posl Cradualc DiPloma in Procuremcnt and

Supply from Kenyatra Univcrsity. Shc has atrendcd Senior Management (ourse and Slrategic Leadership

Development Programme from Kenya School of Govemmenl. She is a member of Kcnya Inslitutc of Supplies

Managcmenr (KISM) and Thc Chancred Insli(ute Procurcmcnt and Supply (CIPS).

Dr. william K. Maririm
Direclor. ReSulatory Ser!'ices

Paer Mutua
Direcror. Corporale Scrviccs

CPA. Edward Nyoikc
Finance Manager

Erastus Muliso
Manager - lntemal Audil

Dorothy Owino
Principal Supply Chain Management Officcr
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Kenya is amonS the largest producers of milk in Africa. with an estimated cattle herd population of J.02 million. The annual produclion of milk in
2022 was estimaled at 5.2 billion litres of milk with Kiambu. Meru. Nrsndarua. Nakuru. Uasin Gishu, Nandi. Transzoia. Embu. MuranSa, Bomer.
Turkana. KakameBa. and Kericho counties each producing more than 100 million litres of milk during the year. Cow milk was approximately 75 per
cent of lhe of the produ(ion (3.983 billion litres) while lhat ofcamels. goats. and sheep was approxirnarely l.l billion litres. 273 million litres .nd
107 million litres respectively. The industry is a source oflivelihood ro an esrimared LE million srnallholder households and provides 750.000 dirrct
jobs and 500.000 indirect jobs. Durin8 the financial ye t 2022-2023. the counrry expcrienced a severe drought rhar ncgatively impacred on rhe dliry
industry including produclivity and producrion of milk and high producer and consumer nrices.

ln discharging ils mandate of regulaling. developing. and promoting the Kenyan dairy industry. the Board implemented several activities during the
financial year in line with our strateSic plan. performance conn'acr. budget and work plans. Key among this was to strcnglhen our regulatory
framework. Under lhe leadership and direction of the Ministry of Agriculture and Livestock Production. the review of the Dairy Industry Act Cap
336. inhiated in 2021. continued. The revicw seeks to ali8n the Act wilh the constitutional provisions including devolution while addressing the
dlnamics in lhe industry including evolvinB technolo8ical advancements. globalization of trade. and emerging focus and concems on food safety.
During lhe financial year. the Draft Dairy industry bill resultint from a revicw of rhe Acr was exposei lo public participation in 22 forums hcld
across the country wilh reprcsenlation from all 47 counties. The feedback from the public were incorporated into lhe final Drafl Bill which was
forwarded lo the Cabinet Secretary. Minislry ofAgriaulture and Liveslock Developmenl lo initiate lhe legislalion process.

Since the establishmcnt of the Board. the Head office has operated from a rented space. lt was thereforc very exciting for the Board to complcte
durin8 the financial year the construction ofPhase II ofthe Nalional Dairy Laboratory Complex. which will among other things host the llcad Office
operations. The complex will reduce our operational costs by saving on payment of rent and enhance the working environmenr for our slaff This is

expecled lo improve service delivery ro stakeholders. Phase I of the Nationsl Dairy Complex is already operational hosting a state-of-the-art milk
lesting laboratory.

To give policy direclion and focus. the Board developed a SrrateSic Plan for rhe nexr five years. rhar is 2023-2021. The plan is aligned !o the

Govemment's socio-economic development policies including Vision 20230. Fouflh Medium Term Plan 2021-2027 and the BETA economic modal.
Thc \lralegic model focuses on four Key Resuh Areas (KRAS). rha! is. Dairy industry compliance: Industry suppon for accelerat€d growth and
suslainability: Research, innovation and leaming; and Instiruional capacity building. The Plan recognizes the underlying ambitions of the Kenyan
dairy industry lo enhance dairy producti\ity and production. value addition. market access and food safety compliance. The vision in our Plan is to
transform the Kenyan dairy induslry inlo a globally competitive enterprise.

The Board performed its role of regulating lhe dairy indus!ry by amonS others registerinS and issuinS re8ulatory permits to 2.450 dairy business
operators. In line with global lrends. the Board requires dairy business operators to bear the primary responsibility ofensuring the quality and safcty
ofdairy produce. This entails implcmenting effective food safery measures in their operarions. To suppon thc growrh and food safety compliance of
thc dairy induslry. the Board trained 5.073 stakeholders includinS infornal milk traders. dairy business operators. and dairy producers- These wcrl
supplemented by consumer educalion campaiSns targeting lhese slakeholders and consumers ofdairy produce. We believe consumers. by demanding
quality and safe dairy produce. can play a key role in driving food safety in the dairy industry.

Over the financial year. the dairy business environment was constrained by several challenges. Key among them was the prolon8ed drouSht thal

affected rDost pans of the counrry leadint to a decline in milk producrion. This affecred rhe supply of milk ro the formal and informal markets. Thc
milk intake by rhe formal milk marker dropped ro 755 million litres in 2022 from E02 million lires in 2021. The drolght limired the local

availability of animal fceds and increased lhcir prices affecting the operations of many farmers. The ongoinS war in Ukraine affected lhe Slobal
supply and prices ofanimal feed raw materials. This limited the opporrunities for Kenyan feed millels to impon these raw materials on lhe duty-frac
basis as granted by the Govemmenl. Local solutions are requird to manage lhe recurring shortage ofanimal feeds in the country. Some measures are

already in place including the public land leasing framework which seeks ro avail public land for agricultural production includinS prcduclion and

conservalion of fodder and pasrure.

Despile the challenges in the dairy industry. the future is bright. particllarly with the focus given by the Kenya Kwanza Govemmenl on the industry.
The demand for milk and milk producrs is growing. The lnremational Trade Centre repons thal Africa imponed milk and milk products valued al

USD l0l.I billion in 2022. This demonstrates the sheer size of the dairy nurket available lo our industry. The Kenya Kwanza Bovemment has

idenrified 5 key pillars ro drive the counrry's lransfoflnation agenda. These pillars are agriculturc: MSMES economy: housing and settlemenl; health

care: digital super hiShway; and creative economy.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Corthued)
h rgriculnrc, d8iry was selectcd as a kcy vsluc chain for transformation given its massive sociocconomic impact and potential including food and

oritional security. Th. prirnary go.ls will bc to doubl. thc annual producion of milk from 5.2 billion litrrs to I I billion lites in thc ncxl fivc )ears
: try inpmvin8 dairy canlc feeding among othcr in!fivenrions. Thc additional production is projccted to Srow cxpons of dairy prcducc to I billion

fu6 of milk cquivsl.nts and gen ratc rhousaDds ofjobs dircctly 8nd indirccdy.

I wish to cxprcss my sincere appr@iation to.ll our valucd stlk.holdc6 lod by thc Hon. Mithika Lintuti, Cabinct SccrcEry

Dcvclopmort for their unwav.ring suppon. My dccpcsl apprccistion to the Board of Dircctors, managemmt and st6ff
catio[ loyslty, and hard work. I am confident that wilh thcir continuing cornrnitmcnt, pcrseverancc, right attitudc and

able to rcalizc ils Vision, Mission, and Functions and grow th. industry to grcatcr hciShts

GcDCrlo Nl Mugo
Chrinnan of Boerd

N.ilobi, Kct!,a

On
for
6r

cultuE end

contributions,
thc Bosrd will

lr

xl
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Kenya Dairy Board is a regulatory aSency established in 1958 by the Dairy Indusry Acr Cap lJ6. Apan from rhe core mandate of regulating rh.
dairy industry. we undertake developmenlal and promotional roles- The regulatory mandate focuses on compliancc of dairy business opcrators and
dairy produce to food safety requirements. Thrs, among others. is realized through risk-based inspections ofdairy business operators and quality and

safety suneillance of dairy produce. We have a modem and well-equipped nalional dairy laborarory thal routinely samples and tests dairy prodlcc
for compliance wilh the relevant shndards. Our network oftwenty-seven branches facilitares access to our services by stakeholders.

Milk is one of lhe most produced and valuable agriculrural commodities worldwide. Clobal production is projccted by the Food and Agriculture
Organizalion lo grow sliShdy by 0.9% in 2023 lo rcach 944 million tonnes. Production of milk in Africa is low. less than six per cenr of lhc Slobal
outpul. AccordinS lo FAO (2023). an eslimated 51.7 billion litres was produced by lhe contincnt in 2021. Approximarely 85 million ronnes (in milk
equivalents) of dairy produce are traded Slobally per year wilh whole milk powder. skim milk powder. butter and cheese being the mosl tradcd
commodiries.

Produclion of milk in Kenya is mainly underlaken by an esrirnarcd l.E smallholders who keep three lo five cows under zerc grazrng. scmr-2ero

Srazins or open Srazint s,stems. Pasloralis! farming contribules to the national milk producrion. especially in lhe wet season. A recenl study reportad
lhal small-scale dairy farmers in Kenya on averaSe have a dairy cow produclivity of 6.5 litres per day and generate monthly revenue of Kshs. 20.149
from the sale of rflilk. Wilh an avemSe operatinS profit margin ratio of 5.81%, the venture is fairly profitable. This can be further improved by
increasing productiviry and managinS the cosls of produclion especially lhat of commercial concentrates. pasture and fodder. and labour. Tlrc
producer prices of milk have increased from an average of Kshs 35.30 per lirre in 2018 ro Kshs 50.45 in the firsl half of 2023. This has been panly
driven by leSislation ofminimum guaranteed producer prices for milk in 2021 and growing dcmand for milk and milk producls.

With an estimated production of 5.2 billion litres of milk per year. Kenya s outpur is approximately l0% of that of Africa. However. with a rapidty
growinS population. the country requires 1o increase productivity and production of milk. The Covemment. under the Boflom-up Transformative
Agenda (BETA), has prioritized the dairy value chain for transformation. One of the kcy goals of the transformalion is lo double the producrion of
milk from 5.2 billion litres to I I billion litres by 2027. This outpu! will me€l lhe increasing domeslic demand for milk. Senerale a surplus ofover I

billion litres for expon. and creBre thousands ofjobs along the valuc chain and in suppon lenrces.

Milk must be cooled and processed as soon as possible after milking- The counrry has a fairly adequale nerwork and capacity for milk cooling and
processinS. Wilh 392 rnilk coolers and a capacity of approximalely 3.5 million litres per day. farmers panicularly in hiSh milk production areas have

f'airly good access to this sewice. However. utilizalion of the capacity is below 50oZ for several reasons including low production of milk.
cornpetilion from the informal market. and disorganizalion of farmers in some areas. Thc Board has registered thirty-five milk processints companics
that value-add milk inlo several products for lhe domestic and expon fil:lrkets- Ilowever. seasonality and low production of milk affect lhe full
ulilization of the inslalled capacity. The country has hiSh dernand for UHT milk and hi8h-qualily milk powders somelimes overstretching lhc
national capacily and lhereby necessilatinS sorne importation. The BETA goal ofdoublinS lhc production of milk will significantly benefit lhe milk
processing companres by increasing lhe milk intakes from 755 million litres in 2021 to an cslimatd 3.1 billion lilres per year. This will crsate

opportunities to enhance value addiiion and expons of milk and milk products.

The Board implemented several activities on our mandate of regul.ling. developing and promoting the dairy industry in lhe financial year 2022-

2021. To stren8rhen our legal framework.lhe Slate Depanment ofLiveslock. with lhe suppon ofthe Dairy Industry Acl Review Taskforce and lhe
Board. completed rhe review ofthe Acr and submined rhe Drafi Dairy Bill 2021 ro the Minisrry of Agriculture and Livesrock Development. The Bill
seeks to enhance regulalion of fie dairy industry for food safety. including camel and Boat milk. Regulation of dairy equipmen! and processing aids

arc proposed in lhe Bill as they play a significanl role in the quality and srfety ofdairy produce. The roles of Counties in dairy replalion and

development are provided in the Bill to complemenl the roles of the two levels ofcovemment- Implementation of lhe Dairy Industry Regulations.
gazetled in 2021, continued. The areas of implementation includcd regisration and issuance of re8u,atory permits lo 2.450 dairy business opcralorsl
6.130 inspections ofdairy business opemtors for compliance with lood safety requirements: 6E.570 rests on the quality and safety ofdairy produc.l
and implemenlation of the minimum guaranleed producer prices tbr raw. In line with the BETA economic model. thc implementalion of minimum
producer prices has benefited the dairy farminE communiry with favourable prices prevailing since 2021. This price will be reviewed regularly by $e
Cabiner Secrelary. Minisrry of Agriculture and Livestock Devclopment. In this reSard. thc Board conducted t*'o bi-annuals on lhe cosl and
pmfitability of milk production in Kenya across production systems. scales and counties to inform on recommended prducer prices.

The sustainability of rhe dairy industry is an imporranr global aSenda given the relatively high level ofcontribution by the industry to Green llouse
Gas Emissions. The livcstock sector in Kenya is estimaled to be responsible for 90% of Kenya's agricultural Creen llouse Gas (GHC) emissiors of
which 15% are from Ihe dairy indusrry. In rhe year 202212023. the dairy indusrry was supported by USAID throuSh the Kenya Inveslrncnl

Mechanism lo develop a Dairy Sustainability Frame*ork (2021 - 2012). ln this regard. rhe Board conducted two bi-annuals on the cosl and

profitabiliry of milk produclion in Kenya across production systems, scales and counlies to inform on recommended producer prices.
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ftPoRT OF THE MA:tAGll;G DIRECTOR (ConrlDued)

Ittc goats are !o corpetirivcly produc. surlicicnr milk to m..t dolncstic dcnund and cxporc; supply quality, safe end effordablc milk whilc

I Eoyiding d€ccit livclihoods for dairy actors: lowcr the cnvironmentrl footprint of th. dairy industy io suppon th. colmEy in mceting its Naliorlslly
, 

fOctr".in"a Conlributions (NDC) targ.ts; and estEblish 6 propcrly govcm.d and highly inclusivc dairy industry.

i lhrin8 thc y!ar, thc Board gcncratcd . tot6l revcnu. ofKshs, 589.93 million with Kshs. 2.76 million bcint . R.currrnt Granl ftom thc Govemm.nt

I d K.nys rnd Kshs. 587.36 million bcing intemally gcneratod rcvcnu.. This resultcd in a surplus of K!hs. I L69 million and 8 provision for rernisrion

I I thc Natiooal Trcasury 6nd Plaming of IGhs. 10.52 million. Thc Sood pedomEllce is .ttributrblc to fte groMh in thc dliry industry and thc

I Eodd's irtv6ttrrrr in inforr8rion t .hnolory !o inpmvc sclic. d.livcry to thc strkcholdas which firflhr' boostcd cmcicncy in rcvcnuc collection.

Thc lindrcial ylar 2022-2023, dcspitc va.ious chqllcnSes to thc industry and thc Board, was r succcss on rtany fionts. The complction of Phase II of
j 6" N"tior*t D.iry Laborarory Compl.x will provide us with bctter atncnities rnd opportunitics to bccom€ bettcr as an organiz:tion and thercfore

I bFovc rcrvicc dclivery to our sulcholdcrs. wc sincdcly thank thc Gover ncn! prinEry ptoduccrs, &iry busincss opcrstors and dcvelop.lrnt

; lrrmcc for rhcir continucd suppon ard goodwill. wc look forward !o c anccd collabontions rnd prlt r.rships $/ith st lcholdcrs fo. accelcratcd

go$th and sustainability ofthc Kcnysn dairy induslry.

nu[rt Xlbog/, OGw
I MuragrnS Dircctor

N.irobi. KcrF

r.l " ll -
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The Board's Strategic Plan of 2023 to 202E has four strategic key result areas (KRAs). These arcl

a) KRA I : Dairy industry compliance

b) KRA 2: Industry suppon for accelerated growh and sustainabtlit-v
c) KRA 3: Research. Innovation and LeaminB

d) KRA 4: lnstiturional Capacity

The KRAs ar. used lo formulate lhe Board's Performance Contracts and work Plans. which are monilored and reviewed quanerly. Implemenrarion
oflhe abovc KRAs in fi nancial yeat 2022-2023 is summarized belowl

Srr.&gh Xc, n rtl Ar! Obrcrdvr Kty ltrrorEllct
Ildhrton

Acth,It! AcIlcrE!.[aa

KRA I:
D.ir! lndustr) Complirncc.

To slrengfien dairy policy
and regulalory framework.
compliance and

enforcemenl

Reviewed Dmft
Dairy lndustry Bill

Facilitate legal drafling of rhc Dairy
lnduslry Bill

LeSal drdfting of
the Drafi Dairy
Industry Bill
undertaken

Public Paaicipation
repons

Conducl public paniciparion on the

Dairy lndustry Bill by involving
stakeholdcrs from all countics

Public
participation
conducled in :2
forums wiih
represenlation of
stakeholdcrs from
allcounlies.

Dralt Bill and

forwardinB letler
Incorporate feedback and submit final
draft Bill lo the Cabinet Secrctary

Undertake sensitiTalions of slakeholders

on the ReSulations in 20 counlics.

Conducr 5.500 inspeqions on reSistered

dairy business operators.

Drafi Bill
forwarded to thc

PriDcipal

Secretary Statc

Department for
Liresiock
Development.

Implementation of the

Dairy lndustry Regulations
2021

Slakeholder

sensilizalion reporls

Slakeholdcr
sensilizrlions
conducted in 22

counties

lnspeclion reports 6.130 inspections

conducted on

dairy business

operatols.

Joint Entorcemenl

repons.

Undcrtake 32 joint enforcement
programs in the year

l7 Joint

enforcemcnt
programs

Dairy produce

qualiry suneillance
rcpons.

Enhancc quality surveillance by

conducring 50.000 rests on markered

dairy produce.

68.570 quality
sur'!'eillance lesls

were conducted,

Bi-annualvalidation
reports,

Conduct bi-annual validation of milk
intakes and quality dara for processors

and mini dairies and implemcnt
correclivc aclions.

Validation of milk
inlakes and
quality dala for
processors and

mini dairies was

conducred and

correclive aclions

taken.

Accreditation of the

National Dairy Rcgulatory
Laboratory

Gap audit report Undertake a gap audil for ISo
I 7025:201 7 cenilicalion

A 8ap audit for
ISO 17025:2017
cenification
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KRA I:
D.lry ltrduslry Cotnplirnce.

Accreditation of lhc
National Dairy Regulatory

Llboratory

ISO 10025: 2017

Srandard

implemenlarion
repons

Implement requirements for ISO

l-1025:2011 standard and appty for
accreditation by Kenya National

Accreditalion Services

l-aboratory staff
trained on Method
validation- Risk
Assessmenl and
lnremal Audir.

Applicalion for
accreditation

lmplcment requirements for ISO

11025201'l standard and apply for
accredilation by Kenya National
Accreditation Services

Panicipare in two proficiency

schemes and onc interlaboral

comparison

Application rnade

to KENAS for
accredirarion

Proficiency lesting
reports.

Pa(icipated in
two proficiency

testing schemes

and one

interlaboralory
comparison

KRA 2: lnduliry support for
rccelerrled growlh rnd
rurlilnrbillty

Srrenelhen sustainability
and competiliveness of
dairy businesses enterprises

Quandry of formally
marketed milk

To achieve 57o Srowth of lhe dairy
industry by increasing the formally
marketed milk from 875 million litres to
900 million litres wirhin the year.

897.1 million
litres formally
marketed

No. trained Train 2.100 inforriul raders- dairy

business operalors and primary

producers on safc milk handlinS and

compIance.

Trained 5-073

informal lmders.

dairy business

operarcrs and
primary producers

Panicipalcd in 20

field days across

the country

Panicipated in 6

forums to promote

and facilitare
expons of Kenyan

dairy produce

No. of field days Organize or panicipate in four field
days ro disseminate dairy insighls and

relevant technologies

No of foruns

Promote rnarket access of Kenyan dairy
produce in expon markels by

paaicipating in six promotional and

trade facilitation forums.

No of\tandards Develop and review four dairy and

relaled standards

Panicipaled in
development and

review of l6 dairy
srandards

Consumers

scnsitization
strategy and

implementation
repons

Develop and implement consumer

sensitization and educalion program
Consumer

education and

sensitizalion

strateSy

developed and

implemcnted

Sensitizatrons
done in seven

counlies (Trans

Nzoia. Kericho.
MuranSa.

Kirinyaga.
Kajiado. Kiambu
and Narok)

No. ofcounties
sensilized

Upscale uptake of School Milk
ProSramme by sensitizing 5 counties

Approved SOPS and

no. ofborder control
oflicers sensitized

Develop sBndards operating procedures

(SOPS) for dairy import and export and

sensitize J0 border control Officers

SOPS developed

and 30

Compliance
Ollicers
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sl \ | l:\lE\ l ol. PuRl()R\t \\( u \(; \t\st pRt:t)tiI]tR\ \t:D()u,tu( It\us ]oR I ltu Ft\ \\( I \t. \ t: \R,lt:: - 20:.1

Str.t!8lc Kcy Re.Eft Ar.. Obrcctvc Kcy PcrforE[cc
lndlcrbr'

Acdtddct Acllcv.Ee!!

KRA 2: lndustry support for
rccelerated grolith rnd
susteinebllllv

To promore climate-smart
aSriculture in rhe dairy
industry ro realize ne! zero
emissions

Finalized Dairy
lnduslry
Sustainabiliry

Develop Dairy Industry Sustainabiliry
Fmmework lo mitiSate Grecn House

Cas emissrons.

A Dairy Industry
Sustainability
Roadmap (2023 -
2032) developed
in pannership

1\ilh USAID and

other
stakeholders

KRA 3: Reserrch. lnrovation
snd Lerrnlng

To enhance research and

innolalion in thc dairy
Final study repon Conduct and disseminate study ro

determine lhe size and drirers of the

informal milk markei in Kenva

Study complded
and disseminated

Bi-annual srudies

condufled and

reponed

Data on milk
produclion and

markerin8 *-as

collecled from 20
counries. Farms

producing 50
more litrcs
day in l0 counries

documenled,

126 stafftrained

Policy revie*ct

Websile reviscd to

conform $'ith
accessibilily
guidelines

PWDS. Audio-
visual oflhe Da
Industry
regulalions done

and uploadcd on

social media.

Bi-annual
rePons

srudy Conducl bi-annual studies on the cosl
and profilability of milk producrion

Validation repofl Validale milk production and markelinS
data in 20 counties

KRA {: lnstitutionrl Ceprcity To enhance insrirutional
capacity and elTicienr
senices to the dairy
industry.

Completion of Phasc

ll of rhe National
Dairy L:boratory
Complcx

Construclion of phase ll of lhe National
Dairy t-aboratory Compler

No. of staffrained Carry out stafftraining and developmenl
progfttmmcs

Reviewed policy Review disability policy

Review website to conform with
acccssibility Suidelines for P\f,rDs

No. ofdisability
mainslreaming

ProSrams
implemented

Producc audio visual of the Dairy
Industry RcSulalions 2021

Approved policy Review and implement *ork place

gender policy
Policv draftcd
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'TATEMENT 
OF PER,FORMANCE AGAINST PREDETENMINEI' OBJICTI}'ES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAN 2022 . 2023

Tlbb l: Parfoftnaffi of tbc Bcrd l8rfut ta !.Sct in2(n2-2O23

Basclinc Urd6trl. r b!!cliD. lurv.y ot! ADA
worleLc.

licy
Rlvicv.d ADA

prwcation policy
srd LqhG workphc.

scnlitiz.d; policy

rEh!trisdrs
subrtrncc ulc
dfuord.rs
incorpodtod in
th. Stsf rEdicsl
schainc

Buctiic
snd

dlrftod:

rrehraistrE
of stsff Estlbligh and opcrationelizc

ltcbrnisna for rtaff v/ith subrtaDcc

dilordcrs

sawiCCS tO thc
industry.

instit iolsl
end

To aohlaca

No of sroff and

stalcholdcrs
s.o!itiad

SoNitize stsff on HIV pr.vcntion
mltugcrEil 712

l0l
scruitizcd;
rtstchold.rs
scn!itizcd

IEpktrsfitio!
ERP

ltvc'rge olt ICT 6!d oficf
lo ohancc lcrvicc dclivcry

ERP itrelarstld

a: Irtadord C.pclty

To artsncc
clplcity aod

lrfl/icas to
ildusty.

thc dairy

irlpl.mcntad
No. of Irprovc wclfarc, h.slth ard

occr.pational safcty of staff in thc
r.,ortplrcc

Srfcty crash kit3
fittcd in .ll
vchiclcs; l0
ddvqs Esincd on

dcfcNivc driving;
!t!f s.n3itizod oD

rced edctl/;

itrlpocEd; 2
iorpaclorata
vchiclcs aad I

purch8.d; r!0airg

fi.lmin rr
vltioos offica!,

strff

and

vchiclcs
scrvicod

A-,



KENYA DAIRY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT Ar-D FL\-A:\CIAL STATEME\TS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

COR PO R AT E GOV ER\AT- CE STA TE }I E\ T

I III: BO,r\Rt) OF t)tRl]( |'ORS
The Board of Directors is the body ofappointed by the Govemment tojointly oversee the activilies oflhe organization. The Board provides slrategic
direction. exercise control and rernain accountable through effective leadership. enterprisc. integrity and good judgment. Il is diverse in its
composition. independent but flexible. pragmalic. objeclive and focused on balanced and suslainable performance ofthe organization-

Bo{ rd (i) rp"\itio
The appointing authoriry ensures lha! the Board composition complies with requirements in the Conslitulion ofKenya and any applicable legislation.
Members act independenrly and each Board member understands rhe bmad oulline oflhe organization's policies. Each ofthe Board members is in
good standing professionally and has sufficient expertise to perform his or her role as a Board member; and al least one member is a financial expen.
meaning lhal he or shc has expenise in financial management and accounling.

ln(lcpcndrn(c of l}lrn.d \lr hrr\
All Board members. including those nominated to represent special interests. recognize that they owe rheir duries ro rhe organiarion and nor their
respective entilies or special groups.

I (rnl Lirnitr !nd \ucc(1\ion phnning
Board members hold omce for a period nor exceeding three (3) years. and are eligible for reappointment for one more rerm nol cxceedinS three (l)
years. The rcnewalofa Board Member's lenure for a second is subjecl lo an acceptable evalualion as determined du ng Board evaluations.

The appointing aulhority ensures staggerinB of Board appointments so that lhe respc{tive expiry dares of the members terms fall al different time lo
cnsure props succession planninS and continuity of rhe Board affairs. The Board of Directors lnder8o an induclion and training upon Sazctiernenl
as orSanised by Siale Corporations Advisory Commitree.

( hrirpcrv,n of thr Borrd
The Chairperson of lhe Board is primarily responsible for lhe activities of lhe Board and its committees. The role of the Chairpeiion includcs

approving the agenda for board meetings. chairing the meetings and ensuring lhat a record of proceedings of all Board activities are kept. Thc
Chairperson also acls as the spokesperson for the Board.

('hirl' E\rcutire ()fl'ic(r
The Mana8inS Direclor/Chief Executive Oflicer (CEO) is an ex-officio Board nrcmber with no voting rights. The CEO and thc Board plays separatc

and dislincl roles but work to8ether lo achieve orSanrzalional goals.

Tlle Board rs rcsponsible for appointing the CEO. through a comperirive process. and for removinS them. The CEO is responsible for ovcrsceing thc

execution of the Board's direcrions and policies to ensurc desirable outcomes. The CEO therefore serves as the link between lhe Board and lhc
Managemenl.

Rclalion.lhip hchrrcn Rosrd and \laniigr rnl
The Board and Managemenl execures thcir nrandate in an environment of murual trust and respect having reSard to the principles of good

govemance. In this regard. the Board provides clear and distincl lines of responsibility and accountability. and maintain effeclive channels of
cominunication.

-I'IIT] Bo \RD CIIAR'I'[R
The Board of Direclors Chaner (fie 'Charlcr'-) defines the Board's roles and responsibilities as well as functions and slruclures in a way thal

$uppons the members in carrying out their stralegic oversighl function. Il provides lhe Board members with an opponunity !o think creatively and

critically about how their strategic and operalional plans align wilh the organization's strategic direction and expectations. wilh respect to

tovemance.

The Chaner helps lhe Board in directing the organi?ition to maximize the lonS term value of services provided for all stakeholders. Thc Board of
Drrectors reviews this Charter at least annually and. ifappropriate, revise lhis Chaner from time to time.

The Charter was adopled by lhe Board. acting in accordance with Mw)ngo:o. Code of Corenance.lbr State (htry)ralions ( the Code'). and is

complementary to the requiremcnts regarding the Board and Board members containcd in applicable Kenyan laws and re8llalions. In panicular. thc

principles and policies contained in lhe Chaner are in addition lo and are not intended lo change or interpret any statute. law or regulation-



.XENYA DAIRY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ET"DED l0 JUNE 2023

CORPORATE GOVERNA.\-CE STATEMENT (Contirued)

ETl ('S ,\\D ( ()\Dt',( r'
Kcnya Dairy Board has adopred high slandards and applies strict rules of conduct, based on the besl corporate practices. The Board of Directors

havc signed lhe Board's Code of Conduct and Erhics in line wirh Public Oflicen' Code of Conduc! and Ethics. which embrace the follo*ing
principlesl

To obscrvc high srandards ofelhical and rnoral behaviour.

Acl in the bcst interesls ofthe orSanizalion.

Remuncrate and promote faimess and responsibility.
Recogniza the legitimale intercsts ofall stakeholders

Ensure that the organrzatron acts as a good corporale citizen

B(),\RD PURI()Rlt \\( t: A\D Rl:l . \ERA1l()\
Board riembers undertake an annual evaluation of performance which is condlcted by lhe State Corporation Advisory Cornminee (SCAC).The

Board ofDircctors are paid sitting allowances. travelling and or mileage allowances as well as subsistence and accommodation after the anendance

of lhe Board meetings. In addition. lhe Chairperson lo the Board receives a monthly honoraria. The palrnenl oflhe Board allowances. honomria to

tha chairpemon and other expenses are in line wilh the esrablished Govemment ofKenya guidelines. The lotal expenditure in Board allowances and

relrted expcnses for the lasl lwo financial years are as summarisd below;

Borrd members erpenaes

Mileage. accommodation. Iunch and sitting allowances

Chsirperson's rnonthly allowance
Direclors' Mcdical insurance

26,722,403 14,123,21l

l tIE ( ()v\ r-I EES ()t-r'HF. B().\Rt)
To effecrively discharge its mandate, the Board has established committees with specific lerms of reference. Tle Board appoints inlo commillees.

rnembers with requisite skills and competence to discharge allocated responsibilities. In the evenr thal a committee lacks specific skills within its
rncmbership. the Board rnay, with the approval ofrhe oversighl body. co-opl skillcd non-Board members to serve on lhe commitlee. provided lhal lhe

chair of a comminee shall no! be a co-opted member or lhe Ch6irperson of the Board. Thc Board rnay. from lime !o !ime. rotate Board members

bctw€€n th€ commirees.

The Board rcmains collectively responsible for the dccisions and aclions laken by any conrminee. A comminee may only perform the tasks deleSated

to it by the Board and may not exc€ed the authority or powers ofthe Board.

Thc Chairperson of each commitree. in consultation with rhe Board. determines the frequency of commitlee meetinSs as is necessary to fulfil lhe
Cornrnitle€'s functions. The Chairperson ofeach commiree. in consultalion with management. will develop rhe cornmillee's agenda. The Board will
however dctcrmine the procedure and process within which committees may take independent professional advice at the organization's expensc.

Thc commitlaes promprly repons lo fie Board any actions raken for mtification and any nEjor developmenls that they becom€ aware of. The Board

shall. as sa out in rhe terms of reference ofrhe respecrive cofininees. receivc a repon of rhe committee's findings and actions.

The Board has cstablished the follou,,ing standing comminees

Audit Cornminee
' Finance & Planning Committee
' Technical. LicensinS and l\4arkettng Commrnee

Hulrlen Resources & Adminisnation Comminec

2022-2023
Krhs

24.396,585

1.035.480

1.290.71E

2021-2022
Ksbs

13.1t0.70?
957.000
555,504

Thc Board nny establish any other ad hoc committees to handle any special business. The Terms of Reference of the cornrnitlaes of the Board has

bcen developcd by the Board.

BO \RD RUSP()\StRt t_t. ES

The basic responsibility ofthe Board members is to exercise their besl judgment and lo ac! in a nranner that they reasonably believe lo be in the best
interest ofthe orSanization and its stakeholders. In discharging that obligarion. the members are entitled to rely on lhe honesty and inregrity of the

organizslion's manaSement. staffand irs exlemal professional advisors and audirors.



KENYA DAIRY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR E\DED 30 JUr-E 2023

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (Contlnued)

ll().\RI) R1:SPO\Sl lit l.t Itt:\
ln firnhemnce of ils responsibililics. the Board determines the orSanization's mission. vision. purpose and core valucs. reviews. evaluates and
approrcs. on a regular basis. lonS-lerm plans. budBel and financial forecasts. rrajor rcsolrce allocations and capital investmcnts for lhe organizarion.
prolects lhe riShls ofshareholdcrs and optimizes sharcholder value.

I{(\pon\ihiliti(\ r'f lrdiri(lurl l}o:rrd \l(nrh(r\
Each Board menrbcr exerciscs lhe highesl degree of care. skill and dili8ence in discharging thcir duties. acts honestly at all times and in the best
intercst ofthe organization and not for any othcr purf,osc.

I'ran(japlc\ of l'uhli( scr\ i(r
The Board. in performing ils f-unctions. is guidcd by lhe principles of Public Service as provided in Chaprer ThirteeD of lhe Conslitulion of Kenya.
which include:

I lrgh \randrrds of Frofcsstonal ethics:
' Elljcient. cffective and economic use ofresources:
' Responsive. prompt. effeclive. impanial and equitable provision ofservicesl
' lnvolveoent ofstakeholders in policy makingi

Accounlabiliry for admrnrsrrari\e ach.
' Transparenr and timely provision to thc public ofaccurare infonnalioni
' Fair compclition and meril as the basis ofappoinxnenrs and promotions:
' Represcntation of Kenya s diverse communities.

B() \RI) \\t) ( ()\t\It It ltUS \tEt:',n\(;S

l"ull ll|'ard mccling\
Board meelings are held at leasl four t4) timcs a year, and not morc rhan 4 monlhs elapse betwcen the dale of one mecling and the date of the next
mcriing. A schedulc ofdales of lhe meetinSs is agreed upon by the Board members and ser our rn the Board $'ork plan. Nolices ofthe location and
lhc liming of mcelings are issued prior to the meelings. The quorum for a Board meeiing is two-rhirds of lhe (2/3) membcrs where the tolal Board
membership is cighl lo nine and four wherc the lotal membership is scven and below. The Board held four full board meetings in lhe financial year

2022'202J and two inauguration meetings (26 July 2022 and 22 February 2021) since the firsl set ofthe Board members werc gazetled in July:01:
and rerired in February 2023 wilh fie appoinrment ofa ne$ ieam. Thc anendancc ofthe Board members during the four full Board meeiings held in
the ycar was as follows:

Bo.rd M.oi.r Ir.dEidor 29-!1622 lCD6Z! 2{Jrr-Zl l&MrY-23
lgnatius Kahiu
Mukina Ki\uvani
Philip Kibusie
Monica W. Kariithi
CPA. Kcnnedy Gathcru
Kenncrh Thimha

Roy Mugo Kaugi
Dishon M. Mnsoda

Chairman

Director
Dirccrcr
Dircclor
Dircctor
Director
Direclor
Dircctor

Rcrircd l0
Fcbruary

2021

Dr. Joshua Chepchicng

CPA. Jonah wala
MarSaret R. Kibo8y
Kenneth Lomaibon,t

Diratror
Direclor
ManaBinS Direcror
Director

Gencsio N. Mugo
Mikc K. Koros

BriB.(Rtd.) Joseph K. Mburu
Abraham K. Rugur

Mercy K. Mbogo
Fatuma A. Haji
Bishop. Cabriel Pulei

Josephine M. OmaDwa

Bcth W. Mbuthia

Chairman

Dircctor
Director
Director
Director
Dircclor
Director
Director
Director

Appoinlcd l0 February 2023

x - Absent with apologies
\ - Prcsent during the meelinS



.KE}.-YA DAIRY BOARD
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CORPORATE GOvERf A\CE STATEME\T (Conlinued)

Audir ( or mitlec
The Audit Commirree consists of four non-execulive f)irccrors and repons ro lhe Board aner every commillee meetin8. The chairperson is an

independent non-Executive Director. The Audil Committce held four meetings durinS the year and lhe anendance for the mcelinSs was as followsl

L.rd CEflra MaEbar P.&! 2t-ScD.22 l9Ir..-2, l7rl.!-23 lMrv-23
Philip Kipkoech Kibusie
Roy MuSo Kaugi
Monicah W.IGriithi

Chairman

Membcr
Member

Retircd l0
February

2023

Kenneth tornaibong
Dr. Joshua Chepchieng

Eraslus Mutiso - Secretarv

Member
Membcr
Manaaer. lntemal Audit

Mike K. Koros
Beth w. Mbuthia
BishoD. Gabriel Pulei

Chairman

Member
Member

Appointed 10 February 2023

t - Absent with apologies

! - Present during lhe mceting

Hunren R(s{}[rce rnd \d inililrslior (i)mDillte
The Cornmiree is constirured in line with secrion 5 of lhe Dairy Industry Act Cap 316 ro review Board papers louching on lluman Resources.

Adminismtion. Procurenent. Security. Govemance. Assets rnanagement and [.egal issues and make recommendations to lhe full Board for adoplron.

provide inpul !o lhe determination ofrhe organizarion s mission. vision and core values. make recommendations lo the Board lbr lhe enhancemenl of
the Board s public image and engagement with stakeholders lhrough effective communicalion.

The Hunun Resources and Administralion Cornminee held four meerinSs during the year. The arendance during the Commillee meelings \ as as

follows:

lcrd Cad.! M.Eb.r Porldon 27.s.D,22 lto.,,22 l3Jl!-23 t}.ADr.2:l
Mukina Kivuvani
Kenneth Thimba
Dishon M. MnEoda

Chair Person

Member
Member

Retircd | 0

February

2023

Kenneth Lomaibong
Marqaret R. Kibosv

Member
Manaqins Director

Fatuma A. Haji
Bishop. Gabriel Pulei

Abraham K. Rugut
Mcrcy K. Mboso

Chair Person

Member
Mcmber
Member

Appointcd l0 Fcbruary 2023

r - Absent with apoloSies
i - Prescnl during the mceting

finrr(c & Phnni g ( orrlrrlilll:e
This Comminee reviews Board papers touching on budgcts and financial resource allocations and capital invcstmenls as well as financial reponing

and makes recommendations io rhe full Board for adoption or approval. The Conunittee held tlve meetings during lhe year. Thc attendancc durinS

the meerings was as fbllowsl

i-d Caa*.. M.ob.r Po.ldo! 26-scz! t1{,d-r2 lN.!-lt 2AhD2! li..AD.-l:l
Roy M. KauSi

Dishon M. Mnsoda
Chairman
Member

Rctired l0 Fcb

2023

Dr. Joshua Chepchieng

CPA. Jonah wala
Marcarct R- Kibosy

Member
Member
Managing Director

x

Bng. (Rld) Joseph Mburu
Josephine M. Omanwa
Fatuma A. Haii

Chairman

Member
M€mber

Appoinlcd l0 Fcbruary 2023

r - Absent wirh apoloSies

\' - Presenr during rhc meetinS
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CoRPORATE GOVERNANCE STATnMENT (ColdDu€d)

T.chnlcd. Llc.nthS .rd M.rlctin8 CoDEIllG.
Thc Tlehnicd Lictoiilg sttd Ma*cti[g Co&trittlc rwicws Bostd p.p6! torching on Tachnic{|, Liccnling md ftirkaing, arld ft.Lc r
rccommcndltion to thc Full Bosrd for adoption. Thc Cornnittc. h.ld fou! mcctingr during thc ycar rnd th. attcnd&c. was .s follows;

'Appointld on l3 Juty 2022
t - Abs.nt with apologics
{ - Prcscnt dudng thc rnc.ting

Kc[meth Thimbr
Dishon M. Mngoda
CPA. Kcnn.dy G.thcru
Monica Krriithi
Mukins Kivuv.ni

Chairman

Mamb6
Mcmbcr
Mcmb.r
M.mb.r

I I

Rllitld l0
Fli2'23

Matrltlt R. Kibo{v Maflqinr Direror
Mqsy K Mbogo
Bcth W. Mbuthi8
Abraham K. Rugut
Brig. (Rtd) ,os@h L Mbulu
Joscghina M. OrDaaws

Ch!ifiran
Mcmbcr
Mcmbcr
Mantbcr
Mdnbar

Atped l0 F.t !3y ne,

\i

xxll



XENYA DAIRY AOARD
AN.\{UAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

MANAGE}IENT DISCUSSION AND A}-ALYSIS

A. PURrORlt..\\( t: ()F r'1IU D,\rR\ r\Dr. Sl-R\

lairoducti0n
This seclion reviews the slatus of the dairy industry and performance of the Board. The laler covers operalions. finance. key onsoin8 projecls.

cornpliance with slalulory requiremenls. and the rnajor risks and opponunilies facing lhe orSanization.

l. Strtus ofthe drlry indusan

Ll. Clobrl driry industr,
The Food and Agricuhural OrSaniatiofl ( FAO) estimates there are I 50 million milk producing households worldwide. The global producrion of milk

in 2023 is forecasted by FAO to increase to 944 million ronnes from 936 million tonnes in 2022 (an increase of0.9 percent). The forecast anticipates

production will dccline in South America. Africa, Europe and Oceania and slightly incrcase in Asia. North America. Cenlral America and the

Crribbean.

r.to Drh Prlc? Ildot
Clobal dairy trade is projecred by FAO lo sli8hlly increase to 85.0 million tonnes

(in liquid milk equivalents) in 2023 from 84.6 million tonnes in 2022. Crowth in
demand is projected in Central America. North Africa. the Middle Easr and Soulh

East Asia wilh decUnes projeclcd in China.lhe European Union and Malaysia.

llilllllrril

rilrtlllll

il il lil tilll!

n
-..1

The FAO Dairy Price lndex, a measure of lhe monlhly change in Slobal
inlemalional prices for whole milk powder. skim milk powder. butter and cheddar

cheese. declincd from 146.47 in July 2022 to 116.12 in June 2023. AccordinS to

FAO. the decline generally reflects rhe on8oing low global import dernand for
dairy products especially in key narkers such as China.

The dairy caxle herd in Kenya is estimaled at 5.02 million (Stale Depanment of
Livesrock Development. 2023). Approximalely 5.2 billion litres of milk is

produced annually with counlics such as Kiambu. Meru. Nyandarua. Nakuru,

Uasin Gishu, Nandi. Trans-Nzoia. Embu. Murang'a. Bomet. Turkana, Kakamega

and Kericho each producinS more than 100 million lilres per year. According lo
the Economic Survey 2023. the number ofdairy socielies and unions increased lo
689 in 2022 from 670 in 2021. Thcse groups p,ay an imporlant role in organizing
farmers to access inpurs and markets for dairy produce.

ln 202212021. lhe Board had a clien! base of 2.450 dairy business operalors made

of milk processors. mini dairies. coolinS planls- cottaSe industries, imponers.
exponers. dispensers and milk bars- These are regularly inspected by lhe Board for
food safety compliance and issued wilh annual regulalory permits.

The quantiry of milk receivcd from farmers by lhe formal milk markel decreased

by 6% from 802 million litres in 2021 !o 755 million litres in 2022. The decrease

was affibuted to the drought experienced between 2022 and 2023. In the firsl half
of 2023 (January to June). 375 million litres were delivered to the forrral market.

The intakes were supplemented by impons of 142 liquid milk equivalents

including milk powders for manufacturing.

l.l. D.iry ladortry in Afrlcr
Despite a high popularion and demand for milk. Africa produces less than 6 percen! of milk globally. ln 2021 produclion in Africa was estimaled by

FAO a! 53.7 billion lires (out ofa global producrion of918.2 billion lilres). The producrion is nor enouSh lo meel conlinenlal needs. necessitaling

impons valucd by Intemational Trade Centre at USD. l0l.l billion in 2022.

\ llurl).r'o, (lrlr"r ro(l.ll(\ rnil nni.)nr
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I 1,,,

s,r

fr

lLi

:i.f;



KE\YA DAIRY BOARD
A\\UAL REPORT AT.D FT\A\CIAL STATE}IE\TS
FOR THE YEAR E\DED ]O JU\E 2023

]lA\ACEIIE\T DISCUSSIO\ A\D A:\-ALYSIS (CO\TI\UED)

\reIrrprodu.er pnc. of mllli
Produccr pnces of milk havc incrcascd in lhe lasl ,i$ years following gazexemenl

of minimum prdiuccr prices in :021 and thc incrcasing dcmand for milk aDd milk
producls. Thc averagc price per hlrc increascd by l:% from Kshs.42.0l in :0:l
to Kshs. .17.20 in 202:. Thc averaSc produc('r price beNveen January and June

2023 *as Kshs 50.45 pcr litre. Thc ralucofrnilk delivered tolhe formal market
incrcased from Kshs. 13.7 billion in 2021 ro Kshs. 16.9 billion in 2022 {an
iDcrease oIKshs. 3.2 billon). Bctwccn January and June 202]. lhe deliveries were
valued at Kshs. llt.l billion.

Under the Bottom Up Economrc Translormation Agenda (BETA). lhe
Govemment is rargeting to doublc thc annual production of milk ro I I billion lires
by 2027. This will be achievcd by amonS others improving availabilitv and access

to lbdder and f!'cds. \r'hich is lhc biSScst constrainl in increasing productivity and
produclion of milk. Thc incrcas.d production will sustain the domestic markel and
crealc a surplus for cxpon. prqected at I billion lilres annually.
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l.l. Olcrrierr of operstions
The Dairy Induslry Acl ( ap 316 provides lbr lhc improlemenl and conlrol of lhc dair) induslry and ils producls. The core operations of rhe Board
arc lhcrclbrc lo reSulalc. dcvclop and promolc thc dairy indusrr.v. In 102212021. sc\cral activirics r!'erc undcnakcn lo rcalizc this mandale.

(r) Rerle* of the D.lr.v Indurlrr* Acl Cap 336.

Thc tsoard throuSh thc Minislry of Agriculture and Liveslock Dcvclopmenl iniliulcd lhe rcview ol thc Dairy lndustry Acr Cap ll6 in 2021 to ali8n it
with lhc con stitul ion of Kcnya (20 I 0 ) and lo addres s cmer8ing da iry produce sa fery issucs. ln financial year 2022-2023. rhe Board facilitated legal
draliinS of lhe Bill nnd public panicipation in 22 forums across the country. The Bill was finaliTed and fbrwarded to the Principal Secrerary. Starc

Dcpanmcnl tbr Livcsbck Produclion.

(r) lmplemenlrllon ofthe Dalry lndu3try Regulrtlons 2021.

Thc Board's compliancc ofTicers and stakeholders across lhe country were scnsirized on implcrncnration of rhe regulation ns. The compliancc
otficcrs $'crc lraincd on risk-based inspcctions. lmplcmentation ofthc regulations was continuously monirored and reponcd.

(r) lnrpecllonr of Drln Burinelr Operrtors.
Thc Board conducted inspccrrcns of 6.1J0 dairy busrness operators againsl a rargcr of 5.500. To cnhancc risk bascd onlinc inspcctions. thc Board
conrracred a s!'n'rce pro\ider ro de\,cbp an inspeclion module lr'hich \r'illbe inregraled \r'irh rhe Board s ERP sysrc,n.

:{umber of lnip€cllon! conducl€d (2019/1020 lo 2022/2023)

Fl[rdd Y..r ntl tL 2tutt t 2!n1fr, txuTt2i
Nutnbcr oi Inif|L\riun\ (ondu!rcd l.77ri I l9lt 6lt5 6 luo
Numbcr ol rnspcctrcns targctcd .1.000 l.(}()0 :l.li(X) 5.500

Pcrccnlagc nchrc!cd t27 600 ,, I 500;

(r) Irsurnce of rtgul.lot} permlls lo drln buslness operrlors.
Thc Board issucs rcgulatory permils lo dairy busincss operarors who comply \r'ilh lhc l)airy lndustry Acl (ap 336 and the Dairy Indusrry

Regulations. l0: l. ln thc financial year :021-20:3. lhe Board issued 2.450 rcgulalory pcnnils lo complianl dairy busincsses operalors.

Numbcr of Regul.lory Permllr l$ued
trtrlldrl Ya.r 2Cll ,rrt 2latn@t 2t21n022 20t t2txl
No. ofRc8ulatory Pcrmits Issucd 9{t7 l.lqt r.:74 t.450
TarScl t,000 l2r)0 1.000 1,500

Pcrccnlagc achicvcd 911709,' 127.40./. l6l.l0%
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(r) Enforcement of the Dairy Industrt Acl Csp -l-16 3nd its rcgulstions.

as provided in the Darry Industry Act Cap ll6 including proscculions. issuance ol inspecliolrs noliccs tnd disposlls.

Enforcement Joint Prosrams Conducted
llruct.I Yc.r 2019no20 2t70nort 2021D022 2022nt2t
Joini Enforccmcnt prolrarns l5 17 llt l1
Target t: tl ll t:
PcrccnrJpe achrc!crl ll5 000,,, tJ170.,, t50 00.,, I t5 000,

(.) Field surveillance quali(.i" tests

A lotal of 60.223 nsk-based nrilk qua,ity lests $crc donc by rhr br nches. Thc national laboraory conduclcd ll.-1.{7 lcsts. '[hc nuin lrcr\ ol non

complianccs

\_umber of dair\ produce qualitv lests conducted.

,b.si.l Y..r 20r9n0 2020n021 2021DO22 2022J2023

No. of rc5l, conducr('ri b) rhr Brrn(h(\ 3 7.1l]5 ,{7.ti7 5 5 i.78'.) 60 tt1
No. ofrc\r\ condu.icd h] rh( NrlrL,nrl [)Jin RcgulJr,'r] .1 751 rl5rl t{.:t{l
Totalrests tl7 r{.15 .17.1180 69..t01 6li.i 70

Targel .15.000 50.000 50.o00 50.000

Percentxga achic\cd tt,l. 10o,, 95 1r00,, l}i.60.,, 117 t00,,

(r) ISO l?025 Accredilrtior of the Islionsl Drin l-sborrion

ISO 17015 is irn rnrcrn lional accrcdrlltl()n iy\tcnr tor laborak)ric\. ll cnirblcr
hboraloric5 k) dcrnonslrrtc ihitt lhct opcrilc c(nnpclcntlv rnd gcncrric prccr\c.

accuratc and ralid results. rhcrcb! prunoting rcccplancc ot'lc\l rcnons tlnd

ccnrtlcitrc: bct\r.('n conc('rncd pirtict -fhc Borrd inilnlcd lhc ccn,licrlron in

l0lll0ll b! trainin8 thc liboraion'sr ll on lhc,nrplcnrcnlrtion ot lhc:\slcnr
and pr('parinS rhc nundilrory prc' rccrcdilarion d()cuDrcntrtron A grp rudrl oi lhc
lxboratory proccsscs \r irs conductcd kr id('ntit-v uccrcdrtxtion gap\. .\n appLcrtrolr
ro irccrcdir th('laboriror) r!i\ nradc ro Kcn)r \aironal Accrcdrhtion Scniccs
(KE:iAS)

-
(a) \'alidation of monthl! milk intakes rnd qualit) data.

parl.urizingplants).Afc\casesofunderdeclarationBcrcencountcrcdandrcconcrlcd\\irhlhcconccrncddairybusincs:operrkrh

(r) Cepacit\ buildingofstekeholders.
To pronrote dail-! produciiril) and cornpliincc. rhc Board rrarncd 5.0t1 srakcholdcrs thrcugh *orkshops and licld datr 'fhc lraining\ lirrsclcd

(rl Consumcr €ducalion

This addr(-ssrd h)'Sicnic produclion. handling. \aluc add(ion and conrumprion ol-dairy producc The scrrrccs ofitrcd b\ thc \atr0nal [)ar+

m.dir
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MANAGEMET-T DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

(e) School milk promotion
Consumplion of milk in schools has several benefits iDcludins contributing to improved school enrolmenl. allcndancc and rctcnlioni nutrilional and
heahh benefit ofpupils; physical and cognilive development ol pupils: and markct acccss for thc dairy induslry. The Board prornoles implemcntaiion
of school milk pro8rams by national and county Bovernmentsi schoolsi processorsl and dcveloprnent panncrs. The approach includes stakeholdars'
sensilizatron. lechnical capacity building and supplicr linkagcs. Wilhin the period. the Board scnsilizcd scvcn counrres (Trans Nzoia. Keflcho.
Muran8a. KirinyaSa, Kajiado. Kiambu and Narok) on lhe implemcntarion ofrhe prograrn.

(s) Deiry trade fecilitation
The Board exhibiled and promoled exporls ofKenyan dairy products al lhe Dar es Salaam Intcmalional Tradc Fair. The Unilcd Republic ofTanzania
is a polenlially large markel for Kenyan milk and milk Droducts panicularly UIiT nrilk. fcmrcnted milk. burlcr and cheesc. The Board also
panicipated in lhe following meetings; a COMESA meeting. which among olher issucs sought lo addrcss rhc long-standing ban of Kenyan dairy
expons to Zambia: an EAC mectinS lo hamlonize lhe fees. charges and le\les imposcd on intra-regional imponsl and a nalioDal stakcholder
consultalive workshop on lhe barriers affecring Kenyan expons lo Ethiopia.

(r) Driry rurreinrbilltv frrmcl[ork
With the suppon of USAID s Kenya Invcstmenl Mechanism and in panncrship wrlh srakcholdcrs. a Dairy
Sustainability Framcwork (2023 2012) was dcveloped- The vrsion of thc frarncwork is to crcatc A
prospcrous and environmentally sustainablc dairy industry". Thc lia,ncwork focuscs on lirur pillars. namely.
prospcrity. people. planct. and principles ol'govemancc. The goals arc to producc sul'ficienl milk ro nrcei
domestic demand and cxpons in a comperilive wayi supply qualiry. safe and affordablc milk while providing
decent livelihoods for dairy actorsi lo\\'er the environmcnlal footprinl of thc dairy indusrry ro suppon rhe

country in meelrnB irs Nalionally Delennrncd Contriburions (NDC) larSer: and esrablish a propcrly golemed
and highly inclusivc dairy industry.

(e) Deirr_ srendrrds
The Board panicipalcd in the developmenl and rc\ieq'of l6 dairy slandards compflsin8 narional slandards (2). EA( standards (6) and continenral
standards (8). The six EAC skndards (for ra$'milkt pasleurized milkl UIIT milki dairy icc creaml Bhec: milk and crcam powdcrs) lrcrc finalized
and submiltcd ro the EAC Secretariar for gazenemenr. The Board also panicrpared in lbrmulation ofCODEX standard. includints lhc ongoing work
to de\'elop a standard for rradilional food markcls.

(e) Study on cost and prolitabilit! of milk production
T\\o bi-annual studies u'cre undenakcn to eslimarc thc cost and profirability of milk production across counties. production sysrems. and production
scales. The findings were disseminared 10 stakeholders. Thc studies inlbrm policy and other opcrarronal dccisions includinS r!'commcndarons of
minimum guarant('ed producer prices.

Thc Board hosred visirs by rhe Presrdenr of the Inremarronal Dairy FederalroD (lDF)
and dclcgations from fie Nalional Dairy Delelopment Board (NDDB) of lndia. Dairy
Developmenl Aulhonly (DDA ) of USanda and Ivesrock stakeholders from rhc Slate of
Erilrea. Kenya is a member of IDF. \r'hich is a Blobal associarion rhar represents lhe

dairy sector and promotes use of scientific expenrse in production of hiBh qualily.
nutritious. sate and suslainable milk and dairy producrs. NrDDB is rhe equi!alcnt oflhe
Board in India and played a key role iD lransforminS thc dairy indusrry in lndia rnto a

\iable and prolitable economic acti\ir)" for millions of milk producers. lndia is lhe

larScst producer of milk in lhc *orld and hi8hly orSanized throuSh coopcratives. The
visil by DDA was to benchrnark on the Kenyan school milk experiencc.

The Board parhered uirh several srakeholders on dairy re8ularion and dcvelopmcnl. These include lhe Kcnya and Dcnmark Srrarcgic Scrtor
Cooperaron Programme. Trade Mark Africa. cBrain. Micro Enrcrprisc Suppon Programme Trust. USAID Keflya. ILRI-More milk projcct. and AU-
IBAR.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

c. FIt\..r\clAl. PERt oRltr\( u

l) Rerenuc perfornrsncc
TIE Board fuads it operations through lhe intemally generated

Gvcnue mainly levies and license fces as well as grants from lhe
parEnr Ministry of Agriculrure and Liveslock Delelopment. In

thc ycar endcd 30 June 2023. lhe Board rcceived a tolal ofKshs.
2.58 million as Recurrenl Granls from the Govemrnent ofKenya.
No fi&ds wcrc rcceivcd in terms ofDevelopmcnl Gmnts towards

finlncing lhe ongoing construction and equippinS of the

N.tional Dairy bboralory Complex Projc{t. despite an

.llocrtion of Kshs. 18.75 million.

rylorr fyD$ rrD& ,rDr, n)or! tYlol9 ftNn tYmn tYro, rYlol,

lllr6 la6l 891 lrrl, l5tt ,t@ !t09 tTat jtl) ttt. G1r'. . .
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lI04 tula atrto atl 96
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Board's toral rcvcnuc for thc last l0 ycars

ln totll. the Boerd recorded total revenue of Kshs. 590.20 million which is made up of Kshs. 587.62 million generaled from the A in A and Kshs

2.58 million from the grants as recognized in the statemenl offie financial performance.

Tha Board posted a 14.767o increase in intemally generated revenue. The Board collecled a total of Kshs. 587.62 million as compared lo Kshs.

512.03 million rcalized in the year ended 30 June 2022. The posirive oullook was rnaintained by lhe gazenement of the Dairy lndustry ReSulations.

2021 which introduced a percenlage-based charge on consumer safery le\ry lhus cushioning the Board from revenue flu$uations on reduclion of
intlkcs due to drought. The Board also continued to benefit from lhe introduction of a consumer safety lely on milk imporred from EAC member

countries.

Consumer srfetr hr\ and l,icrnse fers.

Prior to the gazcttement ofthe Dairy Industry Regulations, 2021. Cess and processors le\ry were charged al the rate of 20 Cents per lilre. However.

with cffecl from March 2021. the two levies were replaced by the consumer safety lery charged at 0.40 Cents per litre or l7o ofthe value farm gale

price per litre process whichever is higher. ln the year under review. the Board received Kshs. 437.62 million in consumer safety le\ry as compared to

thc cquivalcnt Kshs. 38?.07 million received in the previous year from the same source. Similarly. revenue generated from permits increased from

Kshs. 13.19 million realised in rhe year ended l0 June 2022 to Kshs. 18.55 million. This was aftributable to fresh reSistration of Dairy Business

Operators with the implementation oflhe new Clients Service Portal.

Furthar analysis on cess, processors lely and license fees is as analysed below;

<..r, Pro..$orr l.w.nd (onrum.r S.t.ry (.vy Ra8ulatory P.rmits l..s

-1e55

13.19
Ft 202!
rY lol2
Fr 202'
rY 2020
rY tot9

FY2015

2l
23 44

-
-la.ar

-19.t5

-ri2.

11.63

Boardt collcctions from fccs and lclics for the lasr l0 vcars

25@lo@ 15.00

lEport lcr t
Tha impon levy was increasd from 77o !o l07o on CIF value of
th. imponed dairy producrs through the new Dairy Regularions.
Tha rcvenue gcnerared from the impon increased by 26.16%
ftorn IGhs. 88.62 million rccorded in the previous financial year

lo Kshs. I12.69 million. The increase was as a rcsuh increase in
lhc charSe rata from 77o to l0olo in the previous financial year.

coitinued surveillance and enforcement on lhe illegally imponed
milk lnd milk producrs as well as droughr in lhe counry which
Dacessirared additional imponation to bridge lhe local production
dcficit.

Boardl rcvcnuc fiom impon lcvy
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ii) f\pendilure rnd \ rplus for lhc rerr
A.vtnuc W trp..dltu..

4 ro.5a

'{{t,
tY 2023

f'imt2
rY MI
rYmm
fYMD
tY 20lt
FY 20r,
fY 2015

rY 2015

FY 2014

surplus

855

7.9

13.57

.ltit I
!.37

5.O

50:t

5.t19

t_50

'lt6f- r9.59

4.52

15.@ 20_m

Boardt rcvcnuc, cxpcndirurc and surplus for ihc lssl l0 ycars

The lolal revcnue for the Board in the year endrd 30 June 2023 was Kshs. 590.20 million as compared to Kshs. 545.33 million recorded in the
previous financial year. The incrcase in total revenue is attributable to th. good pcrformancc in the collection of intemally gene.ated revenuc. Thc
recurent expenditute during the year undcr rcview was Kshs. 57?.60 million as compared lo Kshs. 536.78 million recorded in the year endcd June
2022. This resultcd to a surplus of Kshs. 10.58 million (afl.r the rec.ivabl.s impairmenr loss of Kshs. 2.59 million) as compared to a surph8 of
Kshs. E.55 million posted in the ycar cndcd Junc 2022.

iii) Il&torirl !rrcsrs in Slstulort snd finsncirl obllgstions
The Board does not have any arears in statulory or financial obligations. The Bosrd's approach to managing liquidity risk is to €nsure that sufficicnt
liquidity is available lo meet its liabilities whcn due. without incuring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Board s reputation. The Botrd
ensures thal it has sufficienl cash on demand to mect expected operating expenses through the use ofcash flow forecasts.

ir ) Ker proiccts sDd inr'cslmrnl dccisions lhe Borrd is implcmrnting
DurinS ihe year, rh. Bo.rd conrinucd with the construction ofthc National Dairy Laboratory Complex. This project is funded by Oovemmefit Cmtlts.
The erection and complction ofBoundary Wall. Catc Housc 8nd El.ctric Fence and civil works were completed in the year ended 30 Jtlne 2020. The
erection, compl€tion and cquippinS of lhe Nalional Dairy L-aboratory block were doie during the year ended l0 June 2021 and lhe facility is now
fully in use. The construclion and tumishing ofthe Administralion Block was complcted during the year and the facility is now in use-

The projecl will improve the Board's physical facility and funhcr boost rhe insrirution's capacity in ensuring $e heal$ and ssfery of consurias.
promole compliancc to intamational standsrds and facilitate national and intemational trade. This will spur glofih and sustainability of the Dairy
Industry and allied sectors leadint (o incrcascd cmploymcnt opponunitics in thc produclion. transporlation. processing and distribution of milk and
milk products.

10.00

IiB l,Ioi
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E\\tR()\\tu\l \1. \\l)stsl \l\.\Bll.lr\ RuPoRIl\(;

1.0 lntroducti0n
Tha dairy industry in Kenya contributes signiicanlly to the national economy by among othcrs providinS livclihoods lo Lll small'scale farmers:

Gnploying dircclly and indtreclly 750.000 and 500.000 persons respectively: and as a source of food and nulritional security to millions of
households. Ihe li\esrock secror in Kenya is responsible for 90% of Kenya s agricukural Creen Ilousc Gas (GtlC) emissions of which l5% are from

$c dairy ind'lstry. Approximatcly l2.l Megatonnes (Mr) CO2 eq. are atrributed ro the Kenyan dairy herd. wilh. llli percenl of lhe emissions

originaring from mcthanc produced by the rumination of co\,r's and I I percenr from the manaScmcnt of stored manure (FAO.20|7) The dairy

induslry is highty susceptible to climale change. To sushin and enhance rhe conrribution of the dairy industry to medium and lonS-tem national

developmenr. it is parBmount that effective climate change adaplalion and mitigation measures are estabIshcd and irnplcmented.

2.0 Sultsinrhilil\ \lrrl(,Br aDd profil(
ln line with lhe relcvant Govemment's policies and legal frame*,ork. rhe Board lakes cogniznce of thc rolc and impact of climate change on the

dairy indusrry. In 2022/2023. the Board pannered with USAID s Kenya Investment Mechanism and olher stakeholders to develop a Kenya Dairy
lndusrry Sustainabilxy Roadmap (2021-2032). The Roadmap seeks to enable the counrry to idenlify and cmploy modern technology and climalc-

snun approaches to compctilively increase production and value addition ofrnilk while reducing lhe carbon foot print by lhe iDdustry. These will be

&hieved lhrough a sct of lbur high-levcl goals aligned to the pillars of Prosperity. People. Planet and Principles of Govemance. Each goal has a set

of urgets and relsted indicators to monitor progress. The Board continued to suppon initiativcs by stakcholdcrs to mobilize resources for financinS

of climate chan8e actions in the dairy industry th.ough rhe exchequer, intemational bodies. devclopment panners and privatc scctor or8rnizalions

Srmng othcrs.

2.1 Unrironnronlal prrtornrrnrc
Thc aSricultural sector in Kenya. including dairy is highly dependent on rainfall. However human

activities have over thc lasl fe$ decades impacted negalively on the environmenr and consequently

agricuhural productrvity. These impacls include increasing GHC gas elnissions liom aSricuhural and

lllded aclivitias. wanton deslruction and culling down of lrees depleting the national lree cover. and

poor disposal of solid and liquid wastes. Ovcrall, these have conlributed lo environmenlal
degradarion and climate change. affecring agricultural production including dairy.

Tha Board as a responsiblc corporare cirizen has an envrronmental policy rhar ourlines our
commrtmenl lo provide qualiry sen'iccs while ensuring a safe and healthy workplace and environmenl
for intemal and exlemal stakeholders. Thc Board. in pannership u'ilh lhe relevant Sovemment
rg6cies. developmenl panncrs. thL' communiry and other players undenakes environmental

conservalion measures aimed al:

. SupponinS thc Sovemmenl to planl l5 billion trees lo achieve a 307o national forest cover by ycar 2030;

. Protecling riparian lands and wetlands

. Ensunng a heallhy and fricndly environmenl

. SensitizinS and involvrng staffand stakcholders on envrronmental conservation

Within the {inancial year. the Board implemented lhe following key activities to conservc thc cnvironmcnt

(.) Tree plenting
In partnership with Kaili Greening Champions. local schools, churches and local administration. the Board supponcd and participaled in planting of
10,000 trce seedlings in Makueni County. In Taita Taveta County. the Board donated and planled 1.000 indigcnous trees and 20 avocado seedlings

.t RukanSa Primary School. Togerher wirh Netfund. l00.000 rrees were ptanted in Cherangany. with the tsoard donatinS 10.000 seedlings.

(.) Biogrs plrrl rl Allisnce Girls High School

Thc Board supponed the conslruclion of a 96-meler cube biogas plant at Alliance Girls High School. The bencllt of thc plant to the school includes

tretter management and ulilizrtion ofmanure. reduclion in GHC gas emissions. and lo\ eflnB energy costs.

(a) Inlernrl mersurcs
lntcrnally. the Board conlinued ro promote proper waste managemenl. digitizrtion and paperlcss lransactions. encrgy conservation by switching off
cquipmcnl and liShts not in use and good flecr managemenr including scheduled servicing and maintcnance.
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t:\\tRo\\tu\I \t. \\l)stst \t\\l t.tI\ RupoRIt\t;

2.2 E plorrc $clfare
The Board is commitled to establish and maintain a supponive and caring B'orking environment that is conducive to thc welfare ofall employees thal
enables lhem to realirc their full potcntial. This $.ill help us to atlract and retarn a compelent and morivared \r'orkforce ro sene our stakeholders. The
Board has a Iluman Resource and Proac'dure Manual developed and approved by the Public Service Commission in 2018. This amonS other sures
lhat lhe Board is an equal opponunity employer. We have complied with the one third gender parity rule as raquired by la* lour of 149 ernployaes.
67 are female and tt2 are male. 44.9% and 55.1% respectively). We have J employees livinS with disabiliry represenring LI % ofthe total workforce
(recommended is 5%). This will be addressed in future recruitmenis. In 2022/2021. some ofthe activities implcmented on slaffwelfare included:

(a) Skills improvement. The Board organized for shon term

skills improvement courses for sta{Ias per lhe table:

(b) Protective gear for lsboratory an.lysts snd compliance
officers: Dustcoats. rafely bools and Jrroteclire gear were
procurcd for 54 Compliance Officers and lcn laboratory staff.

(c) Rcnoratlon of offlce f.cilitier: This included

construclion of an office in Narok branch. provision of sanitary
facilities in Kapsabel branch and replacement of old fumiture
and fitlin8s in several branches.

(d) Performancc crsaading rnd evalultion: The PC \r'as

timely negoliated and cascadcd and d$umented to facilitate
planning by all stafl Mid-lcrm and end of the period revieus
were rimely done and reponed.

Tu hle I : Stu {f l(ill\ intpntrnt! t | ) ll 2 )2(l :.t )
No. TyF ofcotrc No of rlri

Risk based inspections 63

2 Pre-retirement TraininS l3
l Senior Management Coursc l3
4 Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention. l0
5 Supervisory skills 6

6 laboratory methods and validation 5

1 Food safely courses in Dcnmark 5

8 Senior Leadership Developmenl 5

9 Resource mobilization 4

t0 Samp[ng for Omcral Control .l

Culrure and Leadenhir, Chanae

t2 Fleet Managemenl

Tdl 14,

(e) Repl.cement of old motor rehicl6. Two field vehicles for rhe field branches and one stalTbus 1rere procured.

(f) Workplace srfeiy: To ensure that employees work in a safe and secure environment. the Board continued lo institute measures to reduce work
related incrdents. These included adherence to heahh and safety requiremenls in lhe workplace.

2..1 \lsrkct plrcc prrcticr\
(r) Responslblecompetltionpr.ctices
Being a regulatory agency. the Board is commitled to fair market practices. Our regulatory role. apart from addressing qualiry and safety of d.iry
produce. also seeks to establish a l'air playing ground for dairy business operators. The dairy marker is hi8hly competilive requiring thc Board to play
its role in a rransparenl. fair and non-discriminative manner- we expect all stakeholders to comply with lhe Dairy Industry Act Cap 116 and its

regulalions and exercise self-reSulation to enhance compliance and improve the dairy business environmenl.

(b) Responsible supply chrin .nd supplier relstions
The Board being a consurier of goods and services complies with lhe relevanl starutory procurcmenr rcrluircmcnls lo ensure transparency,

accounlability and faimess in our procurcmcnt processes. we endeavour ro build good relationships with our servrce providers through limely
communicalion and fullllmenl of our contractual obUgations among others. The Board givcs preference and reservalions of procurerrcnt

opportunilies lo youth. women and penions with disabilities as per guidelines by Govemmenl.

(c) Responsible trtarkedng and rdverlisement
The Board respeaN lhe social. elhical. Iegal and environmental requiremenls in markering and advenising. we strive lo bc rcsponsible. objcctive.

fair. transparenl and truthful in our generic promorions for dairy produce. Our advenisements are implementcd in line with relevanl Suidelines by

Govemmenl,

(d) Produclste*'rrdshlp
The Board is committed to provision ofhigh-quality services lhar me€l and even exceeds stakeholdeni'expcctations. In regllating thc dairy industry.
u,e regulale and promote production and marketing ofhigh quality and safe dairy produce thal has posilive impact on human heshh. the environmenl

and the society.
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1:\\ tR()\\lt \ I \t. \\l) \l \ I \l\ \llll.l I \ R] P()R I l\(;

2..8 ( orporat( \o(inl Rr\pon\ihilir\ {( sl{) ( onrnrunir\ lngrgrnrtIr\
The gro\rth and susrainabilty of thc da,ry ,ndustry and lhitl ol lhc [roard is hrghly
hinged on the rntcractions. Io]alty. good\\rll and suppon oflhc coDmunrty Thc
Board has a clear rcsponsibilirt_ lo:ocicty and thertlbrc xlbcnlcs rcsourccs for
CSR. Implemenbrion of CSR acri\ rti('s is Suidcd by our ( SR Policy lhat Aims at

posilivel) impacling and iranslomlinS socict) for rmprdcd h\!'hhor.xlJ ,rnd

\\elf'are includinB intcncntrons on dair}- sushinability. produclitilv. hyslcnc and

compliance. To proDlorc complirncc of d.rrry prnlucc. lhc Board donal('d milk
tesrinB equipmcnt (alcohol guns) lo Kapngcluny Dairics rn Uasin Cisho and nrilk
cans to Su\r'e a and Kidzo Co-opcralivc Sociclics in tJasin (;ishu and K$alc
counries respecri\ely. The tsoard llnancially \upponcd I'{a,nn ( arc Ruitu Danr

walk in Kiambu County: Wonrcn s ( apacrly tluildrn8 ProSranr'and (;irl Run

Period in Nandi Counryr and equippcd ncu libraric\ rn Kcbcncli Sccondary and

Chchlr{ Pnmary Srhotl' rn Kcrir:ho ( ounr1.

Milk producrs $crc donatcd rc Sr. Mary's Kap\iolot Girls School in Elgeyo Marak\r,er Counry xnd lbod donations \crc ltivcn l(, (ornrnunilrct in

Turkana ('ounlv.



Kf,NYA DAIRY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JI'NE 2023

t=lod"^'+

REFORT OF THE IIIRECTORS
The DircctoB submit thcir rcpon togcthcr with Audilcd Financial Statcnre s for lhe year ended 30 Junc 2023 which show thc sbtc of ftc Bodd's
affairs.

Prltrclp.l .ctlvlthr
The principal aclivities of thc Board srt to orgdnise, rcgulate and develop lhe ellicient production, rnarkairS. diitibution and supply of driry
produce.

R.roltr
Thc rcsuh5 of thc Bosrd for thc y.ar cnd.d 30 ,un. 2023 .re set out on Page I

Dlrectorr
The mcmbcrs of lhc Bo.rd of Dircctors who scrvcd durinS the year arE showr on Pa8cs v to viii. During th. ycar. cight Dir.ctors retircd ur'ith cffcct
from l0 Fcbrusry 2023 and tcn DircctoN w.rc appointcd with cffect from the same dste.

Surplui re l$lon
In accordance wilh S.ction 219 (2) of lhc Public Financial Management (National C,ovemment) Regulations. Regularory Entities shall rcmit into
Consolidatcd Fund. nin.ty pcr ccntum of its surplus funds rcported in the financial statements 6fler the cnd ofcach financial ycar. In thc ycar crded
30 Jun€ 2023, Kcnya Dairy Board rcponcd a surplus ofKshs. 10.581,538 and has madc a provision ofKrhs. 9.523,384 (FY 2022 - Kshs. 7.694,@4)
as surplus rcmission to Consolidatcd fund.

Auditorr
The Auditor Genqsl is rcsponsiblc for the statulory audit of the Board in accordance wi$ Anicle 229 of thc Constitution of Kenys and thc hrblic
Audir Act 2015-

Bv order ofth. Bogld

Rr8ut KltoB/, OGW
Sccrclary to lhc Board
Nairobi. Kcnya

Date:



XEI{YA DAIRY BOARD
AIYNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TfiE YEAR ENDED 30 JTJ}IE 2023

of rhG fln\iel,trrements 
^-tL'i financial sltcmcnc were approved by Bo6rd of Directon on ..*?.... September 2023. and signcd on behalfofthc Board by:

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
Scction 8l of thc Public Financ. Managcmcnr Act, 2012 and thc Dairy lndt!'try Acl, Cap 316 of lhc I-aws of Kenya requircs thc Dircctors !o

pEparc fimncial statcments in rcspect of thc Board, 'rhich givc 6 truc and fair vicw of the statc of affaiN of the Board at thc cnd of the financial

year and thc opcrating results of the Board for that yaar. Thc Directors arc also rcquircd to cnsurc that tha Board kccps propcr accounting rccords

which disclosc with rcasonablc accuacy thc financial posilion of the Board. The Dircctors are also rcsponsible for safcguatding thc assets ofthc
Board.

Thc Dirrctors arc rcsponsibla for the prcparation and prcsentation of the Board's financial statcmcnts, which give a tru. snd fair vicw ofthe state of
.ffairs of thc Boa.d for and as st thc cnd of the fin8ncialyear cndcd on 30 June 2021. This responsibility includcs: (i) maintaininS sdequat. financial

nnnagcrncnt arangcmcnts and cnsuring that lhcsc continuc to be effcctivc throughout th. rcporling pcriod; (ii) rnrintaining proPer accounting

rccords, which disclosc with rcasonable accuacy al any time the financial position of the Board; (iii) desiSning, implcmenting and maintaining

intcmal controls rclcvant to thc prcparation and fair prescntation of the financial statemcnts, and cnsuring thst thcy are free from matcrial

misstatqncnts, whcthcr duc ro cnor or fraud; (iv) safcguarding rh. asscts of the endty; (v) sclccting and applying appropriale accounting policies;

and (vi) nuking accounting cstimatcs that arc rcasonable in thc circumstanccs.

Thc DirrctoB acccpt rasponsibitity for thc Board's financial statcrEnts, which havc bccn prcparcd usinS appropriatc accounting policies supponcd

by r.asonsblc and prudent judgcmcnts and .stimatcs, in conformity with Intemational Public Accounting Standards ([PSAS), and in lhc manner

rcquircd by the PFM Act, 2Ol2 and the Dairy Industry Act, Cap 336. Thc Dircctors arc ofthe opinion that thc Board's financial statcments givr a

nuc and fair view ofthc srarc ofBoard's transactions during the financial yclr end.i 30 Junc 2023, and ofthc Boad's financial position 8s al that

date. The Dir€ctoas funhcr confirm thc completcncss of thc accounting rccords rnrinlained for thc Board. which havc been rclie-d upon in thc

prcparation ofthc Board's financial statcrnants as wcll as thc adcquacy ofthe systems of intemal financial control.

Nothint has come to the attention ofth€ Dircctors to indicate that thc Board will not rcmain a 8oin8 concem for at least the nexl twelve months from

thc datc ofthis statcmcnt-

proval
Borrd

Gcrc!lo Mugo

Date

Chainnln of the Board
Nairobi. Kcnya

'v-o\:-\:+

rrgrrat Rugut bogy, OCwM
Managing Dircc!or
Nairobi, Keny6

Datc: rt-lo"l-r+
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON KENYA DAIRY BOARD FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 30 JUNE, 2023

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Repo( on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
arc tatly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Acl, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Kenya Dairy Board set out
on pages 1 lo 23, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at

Report of the Auditor-General on Keny-o Dairy Boord lor the j,ear endetl 30 June,2023



30 June, 2023, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net
assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of lhe
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Kenya Dairy Board as at 30 June, 2023, and of its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector
Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis), and comply with the Public Finance Management
Ac/., 2012 and the Dairy lndustry Act, Cap 336 of the Laws of Kenya.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Kenya Dairy Board Management in
accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical requirements
applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe that the audit
evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness
and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not
been applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

Non-Remittance of Pension

The statement of financial position reflects a balance of Kshs.151 ,034,259 under trade
and other payables from non-exchange transactions and as disclosed in Note 27 to the
financial statement. lncluded in the balance is an amount of Kshs.485,436 for Kenya Milk
Record (KMR) staff pension, Kenya National Assurance Company (KNAC) staff pension
and American life lnsurance Company (ALICOI insurance claims which have not been

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya Dairy Board for the year ended 30 June,2023
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remitted to the beneficiaries. Management has explained that these balances have been
outstanding for more than twenty (20) years and due to lack of beneficiary details.
However, this is in contravention of section 19(a) of the Employment Act 2007 and the
Retirements Benefit Authortty Acl 2012 Section 53 (a) on proceedings for recovery of
deductions from employees.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on
Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance section of my
report, I confirm that, nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that
internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Duplication of Debtors Accounts

The debtors schedule provided for audit revealed that some customers had duplicate
customer accounts. The Management have explained that these duplicate debtor's
accounts are as a result of migration to the new ERP system and has since been merged
to individual accounts. This is an indication that the internal controls during migration of
the ERP system was not adequately handled.

ln the circumstances, the Board's internal controls and risk management policies appear
inadequate in the migration to the new system.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya Dairy Board lor the year ended j0 June,202j
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Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are lree from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Board's ability to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Board or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Board's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya Dairy Boord /or the year ended 30 June,2023
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Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) ot lhe Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

a

a

a

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Board's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Board to cease to sustain
its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Kenya Dairy Board for the year ended 30 June,2023
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i
. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and

business activities of the Board to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.

FCPA , cBs
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

27 March,2024

Reporl ofthe Auditor-Ceneral on Kenya Dairy Board lor theyear ended 30 June,202j

5



I{ENYA DAIRY BOARI)
ANNUIL REFORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF T'INANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Ravaaua frottr troD-etchaDge trrnsrctloDs
qvicl fincs and pcnahies

!ic€oteg and permits

Trarrfers from the Govemmenl and other recurenl grants

Rcvalr faom erchrnge trlnsrctlons
Intertd income
Oth€r incorne

Totd rrvanue

Erpctrtes

Use ofSoods and services

Empbyle costs

Boatd membe$ expcnses

Depcciation and amonisation expense

RepriE and maintcnance

GerEsl and op€raling expenses

Totrl crpcnses

OtLi irhr / (losrer)

Oain orr ssle ofassets

Provision for bad and doubtful debls

Sulplr3 for the yerr

2022-2023 2021-2022

Kshs Kshs

557.074.776 481.653.924

18.548.000 r3.t87.900
6
1

8

Notes

9
t0

ll

t2

t3

t4

t5

t6

l7

l8

I1,981.367

2.575.000 33.300.000

578,197 775 528,14t,824

16.t01.837
1,082.559

l7,rE6J9612,006,t I I

590,203.EE7 545328.220

2r7.385.828

26,122,803

42,326,t79

r3.275.6r8

252.393.352

24,7t9.419

205.348,560

14.823.211

39,800.947

8.927.290

217.486.953

511,604,294 531,106,440

511.200

(2.589.255) (5.672,865)

t0,581.538 8,548,915

Remi$ion to Nalional Treasury and Economic Planning l8 (9,521,t84) (7.694.024)

Nel t[rplur for thc ye.r 1,058,1s4

Thc notes set out on pages 6 to 2l form an integral part of these Financial Statements. The Financial Stalements
siglGd on behalfofthe Board ofDirectors by:

M.!Z.rct Rugut Klbo6/, OCW
M{uging Director

Darq t l""\''t^'f

CPA, Edwrrd W. Nyolke
Finance Manager
ICPAK MemberNo. 5668

ou", lr[oz-l:or^p

Ceneslo N Mugo
Chairman ofrhe Board

Date '4-\B

on Pages I 10
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KENYA DAIRY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAI, STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSTTION
AS AT 30.IUNE 2023

Ass€ts Notes

Current assets

Cash and cash equi!alents
Receivables from non-exchange lransactions
Olher receivables and prepaymenls

237.603.351 32t.622.60t

Non current rsaets
Propeny. plant and equipmenl
Intangible assets

Finance leases

Long term receivables from non-exchange taansactions

712.209.990 589.291.r91

Totsl assets 969,813J41 910,913,792

Li3bilities

Current lhbilitles
Gratuily provision
Trade and other payables from non-cxchange lransaclions

Currenl provisions

Defened lncome
Refundable deposits

676.195.510 62t.6t4.407

26 t.896.5E0 r85.380

Not rssots

Revalualion reserves

Accumulated surplus
Capital funds

29 
'.521.25 

r 289.044.005

Totrl net f,sseb rnd lirbllltle. 969,813J,11 910,913,792

The notes sel out on pages 6 lo 2l form an inlegral part of lhese Financial Slatemenls. The Financial Ststemmts set

signed on behalfoithe Board ofDirectors by:

2022-2023
Kshs

2021-2022
Kshs

l9
20

2t

194.956.905
22.608.583

20.037.863

296.007.057

8.469. t42
17.t46.402

22.

23

24

25

510,075,677
9,999.034

r57.30r.768
54,833.5 r l

37 t.464.325
8,205.96t

r59.488.637

50,132.268

26

21

28

29

l0

14.342
151,034,259

4.r46.952
490.258.170

30.88 t.787

87,526.507
5.064.308

490.258.r70

3t
32

ll

t57.10t.768
56.520.792
77,69t,691

t 59.488.637
53,275.169
76,279.599

Non current lilbllities
Gratuity provision

M gut Klbogy, OGW

23 werc

Managing Director
CPA Edward W. Nyoike
Finance Manager
ICPAK Member No. 5668

Cenesio Nja Mugo
Chairman ofrhe Board

Date: rd"{:r+ ,n", B{ottzor+ Date: tu\-,\af

on pages
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rdvAolrnYnomo
4illuer- nmonr AND FTNANCIAL sTATEMENTs
S',IIFEMENT OF CHANGES rN NET ASSETS
16l Tm YEAn ENDED 30 JIJNE 2023

rt rlur u orr
Sudua for the yc.r
Inr*a cned frqn suffc8r loans schcmc
IotS{ €urcd ftqn staff housing rnortgage schernc

Prici par adjutrrnr
t.tth t suff Ho*in8 Mort8agc scheme

Trq+fo of smqtisstion to accumulsted suplus
Ar { r!ft 2022

RcvrlurtloD
telarvc

K.hr
r61.664.142

32

33

33

f2

639,182
228.714

Noter Accumulated
rurplor

IGhr
100,245.373

854,891

(35,000,000)
(r5,000,000)

2,175,505

Cipltrl
F!rdt
Krhr

60,41 1.703

t5,000.000

Totrl

K!hr
322,321,218

854.891

639.182
228.714

( 3 5,000,000)

(2.175.50s)

159,4E8,637 53,275,769 16.279l99 289,044,005

At I Fdy 2022

Suttln fq lhc ,.r.r
Intcfr cemod from suff car loans schcmc
Intcp crmcd from suff housing mongagc scherne

Tralfr ofamoniration to accumulated suplus
At ta ,ulc 2023

32

32

289,044.005
1.058.154

r,059,893
359,199

159,488,63? 53,275,169
1,058.t54

76,279.599

1,059,893

359,t99
(2,186,869) 2,186,869
r57J01,768 56520,792 77,69E,691 291,s2r,251

Ths,*as r€t out ql pages 6 to 23 fo.m ar integral pafl ofthcse Finarcial Ststc.ncnts.
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KENYA DAIRY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Crsh tlows from operatlng 8ctlvltles
Receipti
Levies. fines and penalties

Licenses and permits

Translers from lhe Govemmenl and other recurent grants

Other income

Total recelpts

Pcyments
Use of goods and servicqi
Employee costs

Board members expenses

Repairs and maintenance

Ceneral and operaling expenses

Provision for bad and doubtful debts

Remission to Nalional Treasury and Economic Planning
Total payments

AdJustment for chang$ ln worklng crpltrl
(lncrease) / decrease in receivables from non-exchange transactions
(lncrease) / decaease in other receivables and prepaymenls

lncrease in lrade and other payables from non-exchange transaclions

Increase (decrease) in gratuity and current provisions

Increase in refundable deposits

Net c.3h flotrs from oper.tlng ictlvitlcs

Crsh flow from lnvestlng sctlvltles
Purchase ofpropeny. plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal ofpropeny. planl and equipment

Interest incomc

Increase in long-term receivables

Net crsh flow uied in lnvesting rctlvitles

Cish llow from flnanclng rctlvltles
Capital grant.eceived
lnteresl credited to staffcar loan and stafThousing mongage funds
Net crsh flows from Ilnanclng octlvitles

Net decresre lD c.sh rnd crsh equivrlents

Cash and cash equivalents al I July
C.sh and crsh equlv.lents rt 30 June

tl
t2
t3
t5
t6
I8
l8

25.500.5t4
217.385.828

26,122.801
11.275.6t8

2.52393.352
2.589.255

24,719.419

205,348.560
14.821.211

8.921.290

237.486.953
5.672.865
't.694.024

6
'7

8

t0

Notes

l9

&
l1
9

25

8

ll

t9
l9

q 5?t 384

2022.2023

Kshs
557.O14.116

18.548.000

2.575.000
22,144

202t.2022
Kshs

481.651.924
13.187.900

33.300.000
1.082.559

5?8,220,520 529,224383

547,390,754 504,672,382

( r4.r 39.44 r)
(2.891.461)

63.507.752

868.186

t.026.170
t5.504.270
t2.384.925
(620.092)

26,385.707(7.953.635

39J91,401 54,680.9E0
10.221,t67 79.232,981

2112 ( r80.543,715)

571.200
I 1.983.167

(27.7t2.078t

16.101.837
( t2.862.057)14.70t.24 lt

(172,690,411) (t24,410,2981

15.000.000
867.896r.4r9.092

I,419,092 35,867,896

(101,050,rs2) (9369.4211

296,007.057 105.376.478
19,1,956,905 296,007,057

The notes sel out on pages 6 to 2J form an integal part ofthese Financial Statements
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Kf,NYA DAIRY BOARD
ANNUAL REFORT AND FINANCIAL STATE]IIENTS
STAIEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS
FOR IHE YEAR ENDf,D 30 JUNE 2023

..levcoue

Levics. fincs and penallies - Note (a)

Licenses and permils - Note (b)
Transfcrs from lhe Covemment and other recurent granls

lntcrBt income

Other income and gain on sale ofassets

Totd raverue

Erpct..i
Use of goods and sewices

Employcc costs - Note (c)

Board mcmberc expenses

Deprrciation and amonisalion expcnse

Repaits and maintenance

Ccncill rnd operaling expenses

Totd crpcndlture

516,000,000 73,721,000 589,721,000 590,775'0E7 I,05.1,087

originrl Budgct Adjustment Flnal Budget

2022-2023

Kshs
467.820.000

7.680.000

11.100.000
7.200.000

2022-2023
Kshs

94.680.000
4.966.000

(10.725.000)

4.800.000

2022-2023

Kshs

562.500.000
r2.646.000

2.575.000
r2.000.000

Actual
Performence

2022-2023
Kshs

557,074 776

t8.548.000

2.575.000
I1.981.367

591,9U

Performsnce
dlfference
2022-2023

Kshs
(5.425,224)

5.902.000

( 16.63-1)

591.944

26.360.000
233.r08.538

t5.696.000
29,082,862

9.410.000
202.342,600

150.000
(4,795.305)

l r.298,000
I I,873.705
4.190.000

50.604,600

26.7 t0.000
228.1l].233

26,994.000
40.956.567

r3.800,000

252.947.200

25.500.5 r4
217.185.828

26.722,803
42.326.t19
8.275.618

252.393.352

( r.209.486)
( r0.927.405)

1271.191)
1.169.6 t2
(524.1E2 )

(553.848)

516,000,000 73,721,000 s89,?21,000 577,604,294 (11.116,706)

Surpht for the period - Note (d) 13.170.793 13.170.793

C.pltrl Erpendlture - Note (f) l?3,960,000 (12r.930,000) 52.030.900 r80.543,735 fl28,513,735)

The rDticipated changes in revenue with the implemcntation ofthe Dairy Industry Regulalions. 2021 ncccssitaled the l2% revision (Kshs. 73.72

millim) of the recurrent budgel from Kshs. 5 | 6 million to Kshs. 589.72 million. Similarly. the capital budgct was revised by Kshs. l2 L9l million
from Kshs. I 71.96 million ro Kshs. 52 million as a result of the revision of the Sovemmenr of Kenya Capilal 8ranls in the revised eslimalcs for Ihe

year.

Notrt
r) bvl.!, llnes rtld pe[.lties - The Board did not achieve the budgeted revenue by Kshs. 5.4] million ( l%) as a result of unfavorablc wealher
(drought) which contributed to lhe rcduction ofinlakes in the formal seclor.

b) Llctricr lnd permits - The Board exceeded the budgeled collection on pcrmit fecs with Kshs. 5.90 million which was mainly brought about

by fr6h registration ofDairy Business Opcrators with the implementation ofthe new Clients Service Ponal.

c) E[ployee costs - The total expendirure under this caregory was Kshs. 10.9J million (4.8%) below budSel as a resull oflhe dclays in thc

engagatrenl ofnew slaffduring the year and also the approval ofa 20-06 basic salary increase. Thc requcsl for a 20olo salary review was declined by
lhc Sslaries and Remuneration Commission despite approval by the National Trgasury and Economic Planning.

d) $rplur for the pcriod - In overall. the Board realised a surplus ofKshs. l.l.l7 million as a resuh of surpassed collection on intemally
gen.nt.d rcvenue by Kshs- 1.05 million and unabsorbed expendilure of Kshs. I 2. I 2 rnillion.

e) Rtconclllrtlon of surplus rs per the Statem€nt of Compa son of Budget and Actual Amount3 and net
surplut ri per the Statement of Flnrnclsl Performrnce.

Flnrl Budget
2022-2023

Kshs
Surplus as per statement ofcomparison of Budgel and aclual amounls
Provirion for bad and doubtful debts

Provirioo for Rernission lo Nalional Tacasury and Economic Plannin!

13.170.793

(2,589.255)
(9.523.184)

Nat tllDhs rs per Stetement of Finrncirl Performence 1,058,1s4

0 Rccolclllrtion of rcturl coplt.l expenditure rnd the Budget for thc yerr Flnrl Budget
2022-2023

Kshs
Vsrimcc as per the statement ofcomparison ofBudgc! and actual amounts
Amount financed through prior year budgclary allocations

(r28,511.735)
t32,599,272

The vrrlaDce bctweeD the Budget for the ye!r ond actual expendlture 4,085,537

Fln.l Budget
2021-2022

Kshs
14.22t.780

(5.672.ri65)
(7.694.024)

t54.891

Flnrl Eudget
202t-2022

Kshs
(65.797,078)

72.08.81t
6,216,753



KENYA DAIRY BOARI)
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMf,NTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

l. Ccnersl lnformation
Kenya Dairy Board is established by and derives its aulhority and accountability from The Dairy Industry Acl Cap 336. The entity is wholly owned
by the Govemmenl of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The enlity's principal activity is to regulate. promote and develop Dairy lndustry in
Kenya.

2. Strtement ofcompliance rDd b.sis ofprcprrrtloD
The financial statements have been prcpared on a historical cost basis cxcepl for the measuremenl at re-valued amounts of certain items of
property. plant and equipment and impaired assets at their estimated recoverablc amounts. The preparation of financial statements in confomily
wilh Intcmational Public Sector AccountinS Standards (IPSAS) allows lhe use of eslimates and assumptions. It also requires managemml to
exercise j udgement in the process ofapplying lhe Board s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree ofjudgement or complexity. or
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements. are djsclosed in Nole 5 of thcse financial statements.The financial
slatcments have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings. which is the functional and reporting currency of the Board. The financial
statements have befn prepared in accordance with the PFM Act. the State Corf,o.ations Act and the Dairy Industry Acl. Cap 336. and Inremational
Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The accounlinS policics adopled have been consistently applicd lo all the years prcsentcd.

3. Adoptior of New rnd revised Strndrrds

(l) New rnd rmended stendrrds and interpret.tlons ln lssue effective ln the yerr ended f,o June 2023.
IPSASB defened the applicalion date of standards from lst January 2022 owing to Covid 19. This was done 10 provide entities with time to
effcctively apply the standards. The defenal was set for lst January 202J.

(ll) New srd xmended st.nd.rds .nd lnterpr€trtloni in issue but tlot yet effective in the yerr ended 30 June 202J.

St.ndrrd Effectlve d.te and imDrct
IPSAS 4l: Financial Instrume_nls (Appllc.ble: I J.nurr, 2023). The obje.ri!e of IPSAS 4l is to eslablish principles for the financial repnring

of financial assets and liabilities thal *ill present relevanl and useful information to users of fina[cial
slalements fior lheir assessment ofthe amounts. liming and uncenainly ofan enlity's future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of llnancial statemenls with more useful in formation than IPSAS 29 by

. Applying a single classificaiion and measurement model for financial assets that considers the characleristics
oflhc asscl's cash flows and the objective [or which the asset is held:

. Applying a single forward-looking expecled credil loss model lhat is applicablc to all financial instrumenls
subjecl to impairmenl tesling: and

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model lhat broadens the hcdginS arangements in scope of thc
guidance. The model develops a strong link betw€ln an entily s risk management stralegies and the accourling
lrealment for inslruments held as part ofthe risk managemenl strategy.

The Board has reported the Financial Instruments within the scope of IPSAS 29 - Financial lnstruments and

lherefore lhe standad does not apply.

IPSAS 42: Social Benefits (Appllcrbler I Jrnuer.v 2023): The objective of this Standa.d is to improve the relevance. faithful
rcpresenlaliveness and comparability of the informalion that a rcponing entity provides in ils finsncial
stalemcnls aboul social benefits. The information provided should help users of the financial stalements and

gmeml purpose financial repons assess:

(a) The nature ofsuch social benefits provided by the entity;
(b) The key fealures ofthe operation oflhose social benefit schemcsi and
(c) The impact of sr.rch social benefits provided on the entity's financial perlbrmance. financial position and

The Board incurs no expenditure which is within the scope of IPSAS 42: Social Benefits and therefotc thc

standard does not apply.

Ammdments to Other IPSAS
rcsulting from IPSAS 41.

Financial lnstruments

Appllcrble: I Jrnurr! 202.3:

(a) Amendments to IPSAS 5. lo update the guidance related to lhe componmts of borowinS cosls which were

inadvertenlly omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.
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XENYA DAIRY BOARD
.ANNUAI, REFORT AND NNANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Anrndrnrnts lo Olher IPSAS

rcsultinS from IPSAS 41.

irElcial Instruments

Appllc.ble: I Jrnurry 2023:

(b) Amendments to IPSAS 30. reSarding illuslrative examples on hedging and credit risk which were

inadvenently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendmenls to IPSAS 30. to update the guidance for accounting for financial guarantee contracts which

werc inadvcrlenlly omitled when IPSAS 4l was issued.

d) Amendments ro IPSAS ll. ro updale lhe glidance on classiffng financial instruments on initial adoplion of
accrual basis IPSAS which were inadvenenllv omilted when IPSAS 4l l,|,/as issued.

The Board has reponed the Financial Instrumenls within the scope of IPSAS 29 - Financial Instruments and

therefore the standard does nol apply.

Oticr improvements to IPSAS Applicable I" lanuary 2023

(t) IPSAS 22 Dtsclosure of Fiurncirl Inform.tlon .bout the Cencrrl Covernment Sector.

Amendmenrs ro refer to the larest System ofNarional Accounts (SNA 2008).

(ll) IPSAS 39: Employee Bcncfits

Now deletes the term composite social s.{urity benelils as il is no longer defined in IPSAS

(lll) IPSAS 29: Ftnrncirl instruments: Recognltlon and Meisurement
Standard no longer included in the 2023 IIPSAS handbook as it is now superseded by IPSAS 4l which is

applicable lrom l"'January 2023.

Thc Board has presented the financial stalements to cover the institutional performance for the year hencc

improvements on IPSAS 22 does not apply. Similarly. orher improvements to IPSAS 29 and IPSAS 19 do no

apply ro the Board as at 30 ,une 2023.

IPSAS 43 Applicoble l" lanuary 2025

The slandard sets out the principles for the recognilion. measurement, presentation. and disclosure of leases.

The objectivc is lo eDsure that lessees and lessors provide relelant information in a manner thal faithfully
represenls those transactions. This information gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess the effecl
that leases havc on the financial position. financial performance and cashflows ofan Entity.

Thc new slandard requires entilies lo recognise. measure and prescnl informalion on riShl of use assets and

lease liabilities.

The Board has recognised. meased and presented information on the right lo use assets and lease liabilities as

required under IPSAS 41.

IPSAS ,14: Non- Currenl Assets

Held for Sale and Discontinued
Op€rations

Applicoble la Jaluo4- 2025

The Standard requires;

(i) Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured at the lower olcarrying amount

and fair value less costs to sell and the depreciation ofsuch assets to cease and:

(ii) Assels lhat meel rhe criteria ro be classified as held fo. sale to be presented sepamtely in the statemenl of
financial position and lhe results of discontinued opemtions lo be presentei s(paralely in the stalemenl of
financial performance.

The Board had no cunent assets held for sale and discontinued operations at al J0 June 2023

(lt) E.rly adoptlon of Standsrds
Thc Board did not early - adopt any new or amended Standards in the financial year ended 30 June 2023
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KENYA DAIRY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

4. Summary of sigrific.nt accountlng pollcies (Corltinued)

r) Revenue recognltlon

i) Revenue from ron-erchange trrnirctloos
The Board recogoizes revenues ftom consumer safety lcly. impon levies, penalties and permit fees when the evenl occurs and the asset recognition
crileria a.e mel. To the extent thal there is a related condition altached that would give rise to a liability lo repay the amount, deferrcd incom€ is
recosDized instead of revenue. Other non-exchange revenues are recognized when il is probable lhat the fulure economic benefits or service
potential associaled with the asset will flow lo the entity and the fair value oflhe asset can be measured reliably. Specifically:

lmport levy
lmport levy was payable by any person who imports milk or any other Dairy produce at a rate of 109/0 of Sross cost. insurance and freight (land€d
value) ofthe milk or dairy produce.

Pe.raltles
Penalties are charge lo any person who fails to remit the cess levies to the Board. As required by law. Penalty on levies is charged al a mte of257o
for lhe first ofmonlh in which the cess remain unpaid and l2olo compound inlerest for each subsequmt month-

Llccnser and permit fee$

Licensing fees is paid by licensed t.ader on annual basis, while permil is paid by Dairy transporters and imponcrs. Licenses and pemit fees sre
accountcd for on accrual basis.

Trrnsfers from Covemm€rt rnd other entltles
Revenues from non-exchange tftmsactions wilh other govemmenl enlities are measured al fair value and aecogrized on obtaining control of the
asset (cash. gods. services and p.openy) if lhe ransfer is fiee from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service poicntial
relaled to the asset will flo* to lhe Board and can be measured reliably. Recurrcnt gmnts are recognized in the statemenl ofcompaehensive income.
Developmenycapital grants are recognized in lhe statemenl of financial position and realised in the slatement of comprehensive income over the
useful life ofthc assets thal has been acquired using such funds.

ll) Revenue from exchange trrnsactlons

Srle of tenders and publicstlons
Revenue fiom the sale of lenders and publications is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of owncrship have been transferred to fie
buycr, usually on delivery oflhe goods and when the amount ofrevenue can be measured reliably and it is probable lhat the economic benefits or
service potential associated with the transaclion will flow to lhe Board.

lnrcre3t lncome
lnterest incofte is accrued using thc effeclivc leld method and recognised net of withholding tax. The effective yield discounts eslimatd fulue
cash rcceipls through the expecled life of lhe financial asset to that asset's net canying amount. The melhod applies this yield lo the principal
outstanding lo delermine interesl income each period.

b) Budget lnlormrtion
The original budgel for FY 2022-2023 vras approved by The National Treasury and Economic Planning in June 2022. Subsequenl rcvisions ot
additional appropriations were made to lhe approved budget in accordancc with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The addilional
appropriations are added lo the original bldgel by the Board lpon receiving the respective approvals in order lo conclude the final budgrt.

Accordingly. the Board recorded addilional appropriations of Kshs. 73.721,000 in recunent expendilure and a downward review of Kshs.

| 21,910.000 in capital expenditure in the 2022-2023 budgel following approval by The National Treasury and Economic Planning.

The Board's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expcndilure disclosed in the linancial statements. save for provision
for depreciation and amonisation of non-cufient assets. The financial statemenls are prepared on accrual basis using a classification based on the

nslurc ofexpenses in lhe stalemenl of financial performance. whereas the budgct is prepared on a cash basis wilh additional non-cash item relating

lo provisions for deprecialion and amortisation. The amounts in lhc llnancial statemenls were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and

reclassificd by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budgel. A comparison ofbudget and actual amounts. prepared on a compamble

basis to the approved budget. is lhen presented in the statement ofcomparison ofbudgel and actual amounts-

8



KENT,A DAIRY BOARD
AITTNUAL Rf,P'ORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Summry of slgrirlcrot rccountlng policies (Contirued)

I addition to the Basis difference. adjustments to amounts in the financial statcments arc also made for differences in lhe formats and

classification schcmes adopted for thc presentalion ofthe financial statemenls and lhe approved budget.

A staldncnt lo reconcile the aclual amounts on a comparable basas included in the statement ofcomparison ofbudget and aclual amounls and the

acluals expcndilurc for thc year has been presented on Page 5 ofthese linancial slatemenls.

c) T.rttloD
No tax prcvision has bc'en made in these financial statements since the income of Kcnya Dairy Board is exempt fiom taxation under lhe Firsl
Schedrlc. Pan I ofthe Income Tax Acl.

d) Prapcrty, plrrt rDd equipment
All odEr property, planl and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairmmt losses. Cost includes cxpenditure that is

directly attributable ro the acquisition ofthe items. When significant pans oIproperty. plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intcwals.
the cntity recognizes such pans as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates rhem accordingly. Likewise. when a major inspection
is pcrfGmed. ils cosl is recognized in the carrying amount ofthe plant and equipmenl as a replacemenl if the recognition crileria a.e satisfied. All
other rcpaia and maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficil as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction lor nil
or nominsl consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value. Depreciation on other asscts is calculated using the straight-line melhod lo
allocal! their cosl or revalued amounts less their residual values over their estimated useful lives. as follous:

Molor vehicles
Officc rnd laboratory equipmenl

Fumiirre and fittings
Compulcrs

Rate (%)
25.00vo

t2.500/o

t2.500/0

11.00%

Cains md losscs on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are included in the stalement of financial
perfomance. On disposal ofrevalued assets. amounls in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset are transfened to accumulated surplus.

e) IDt[8lble assets

Int8ngiblc ssscts acquired separately are inilially recognizcd at cost. The cost of inbngible assels acquired in a non-exchange tmnsaction is their
fair value al the date of the exchange. Following initial recognition. intangible assers are ca.ried at cost less any accumulaled amonization and
accunulalcd impairmenl losses. Intemally generaled intangible assets. excluding capitalized development cosls. are not capitalized and
exp€'nditue is reflected in surplus or deficit in lhe period in which the expendirure is incurred. Thc useful life ofrhe intangiblc assets is assesse{ as

finile lDd amortisation is calculaled using the slraight-line melhod to allocale their cosl or revalued amounls less lheir rcsidual values over their
eslimalod uscful lives at a rale of 33yo.

f) Fln[.. l..ses
Financc lcascs are leases lhat transfer subslantially all of the risks and benefits incidcnlal to ownership ofthe leased item to the Board. Assets held
under t finance lease are capitalized al the commencemcnl of lhe lease at the fair value of the leased propeny or. if lower, at the presenl value of
ihe futwe minimum lease pa)menls. The Board also recognizes lhe associalcd lease liability at rhe inception of rhe lease. The liability recognized
is mcasurod as the presenl value ofthe fulure minimum lease pa),ments at inilial recognition.

An asscl held undet a linance lease is amortised over the useful life ofthe assel. However. ifthere is no reason6ble cenainty thal the Board will
obtain ownership of the asset by thc end of the lease term. the asset is depreciated over lhe shoflcr ofthc estimated useful life ofrhe assel and the
lease 16!lr.

Opcrating leases are leases that do nol tmnsfer subslantially all the risks and benefirs incidenral ro ownership of rhc leased item to lhe Entity.
Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straighlline basis over the lease term.

8) R.scrrch .nd Development costs
The Bard expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual project are recognized as intangible assets when the Board can

demonttt?te:

The tchnical feasibilily ofcompleting the asset so thar the assel will be available for use or sale

Its intcntion to complete and its ability lo use or sell the asser

How thc asset will genemle future eaonomic benefits or service potmtial
The lvailability ofresou.ces to complete the asset

The tbility to measurc reliably the cxpenditure during development.
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KENYA DAIRY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDf,D 30 JUNE 2023

Summary of slgnillcrnt sccountlng pollcles (Contlnued)

Following inilial recognition of an asset. thc assct is carried at cost less any accumulaled amortization and accumulated impairmmt losscs.
Amonization of the assel begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. h is amonized over the period ofexpecled futurc
benefit. During the period of dcvelopment. the asset is tested for impai.ment annually with any impairmenl losses recognized immediately in
surplus or deficit.

h) Flnanclal lnstruments
IPSAS 4l addresses the classification. measurement and de-.ecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. introduces new rules for hedgc
accountinS and a new impairmenl model for financial assets. Thc Board does not have any hedge relalionships and lherefore the new hedge

accounling rules have no impact on the financial slatements.

h) Fhsnclsl lnstruments

A financial instrument is any contract thal gives rise to a financial asser ofone entity and a financial liability or equity instrument ofanolher cntity.
Al initial recognilion. thc entily measures a financial asset or linancial liability al its fair value plus or minus. in lhe case of a financial ssset or
financial liability nol at fair value through surplus or deficil, transaction costs thal are directly attributable to lhe acquisition or issue of thc
financial assct or financial liability.

l) Flnsnclel rssets

Inltlrl recognltion rnd measuramcnt
Financial assets within lhe scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognilion and Measurement are classified as llnancial assels at faia value
through surplus or deficil, loans and receivables, held-to-malurity investments or available-for-sale financial assets. as appropriate. The Board
determines the classification ofits financial assets al inilial recognition.

Loanr and rcceivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivalive financial asscts with fixed or deteaminable pa,.rnents thal are not quoted in an active markel. Afler initirl
measuremenl. such financial asscts are subsequently measu,ed al amonized cosl using lhe efleclive inleaest method. less impairment. Amorlizcd
cost is calculated by taking into account any discounl or premium on acquisition and fces or costs that are an integral pan ofthe effeative interesl
ratc. Losses arising from impairmenl are recogrized in the surplus or deficil.

lmpalrment of finrnchl sssets

The Board asscsses al each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a entity of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or an entily of financial assels is deemed to be impaired if, and only if. there is objective evidence of impairment as a resull ofone
or more events lhat has occurred after the inilial recogrrilion of the assel (an incurred 'loss evmt') and that loss event has an impact on lhe

estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the entity of financial assets that can be reliably cstimated. Evidence of impairment may

include the lollo\ring indicatorsl

a) The receivable or a entity ofdeblors are experiencinS siSnificant financial difljcully.
b) Default or delinquency in intcresl or principal paymenls.

c) The probabilily lhat debtoN will enler bankruptcy or olher financial reorganizalion.
d) Observable data indicales a measurable decrease in cstimated future cash flows. (For example. changes in arrearc or economic conditions that

correlate with defaults)

ll) Flnrnclal lhbilitles

Inlthl recoglltion rlld mersuremert
Financial liabililies within lhe scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through surplus or deficit or loans and

bonowings. as appropriare. The Board determines rhe classification ofits financial liabilities al initial recognilion.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in case ofloans and bono*ings. plus directly attributsble transaction costs

Lorns rnd borrc*ings
Aner initial recogrrition. interesl bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amonized cost usinS the effective interesl melhod.

Gains and losses are recognised in surplus or deficit when rhe liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest method

amortization process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an inteFal pan of the

effective interest raie.

l0
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INNUAL Rf,FORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTES TO TTIE FINANCIAL STATEMf,NTS
r6R TI{f, YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

SE]!orry of slgnlllcrnt accounting pollcles (Continued)

Rcld prrtlc'
The Bocrd regards a rclated party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control individually orjointly. or to exercise significant influence

over lhc Board. or vice versa. Members of kcy management arc regarded as related panies and comprise the Members of key msnaSemmt are

rcgarded as related panies and comprise the Di.eclors. the ChicfExcculive OfTicer and Ileads ofDepanmenls.

J) Provhlons
Provi3iq$ are recognized when the Board has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past evenl. it is probable lhat an outflo*'
of rcaourccs ernbodfng economic benefits or service polential will be required lo settle the obligation and a reliable estimale can be made of the

amqrtlt of the obligation.

whet! the Board expccts some or all ofa provision to be reimbursed. for example, under an insumnce contracl. thc reimbursement is recognized as

a sepqste assel only when the reimbursemenl is vinually certain.

The crpcnse relaling to any provision is presented in the statemmt of financial performance net ofany aeimburscment

Corthgetrt li.bllldet
The Board does nol recogrize a conlinSenl liability, but discloses details ofany conlingcncies in the notes lo lhe financial statements. unless the

possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential is remole.

Conahgcnt rssets

The Bcrd does nol recognize a contingent asset. but discloses details ofa possible asset whose existence is conlingent on the occurence or non-

occuttlnce of one or more uncertain fulure events not wholly within lhe control of lhe Board in the notes to the financial stalemenls. Contingent

asseB ar! assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial slatements. lf it h6s become vinually ce ain

that l! inflow ofeconomic benefits or service potential will arise and the asset's value can be measured reliably. the asset and the related revenue

arc rccognized in the financial statemmts ofthe period in which thc change occurs.

k) Nature aod purpose of reserves

The Board creates and maintains reserves in terms ofaccumulaled surplus. revalualioo reserves and capital funds.

l) CLr8e! in rccountlng policies rnd estlmates

The Bosld recognizes the effects of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects of changes in accounting policy arc applied

prospalively if retrospective application is impractical.

m) Elployee b.Dcflts

R.tlraocDt ben.rh plrn
Thc Bold provides retirement benefils for its employees. Defined contribution plans are posl employment benefit plans under which an entity
pays fixcd contribulions into a separaie enlity (a fund). and will have no legal or construclive obligation to pay further contributions il the fund

docs rpt hold sufficicnt assets to pay all employee benefils relating to employee service in the current and prior periods- The contributions to fund

obligdiois for the payment of retiremenl benefits are charged against income in the year in which they become payable. Graluity for contracled
empbyc.s is charged against income in the year in which they are eamed and are payable at lhe end ofthe contract period.

n) Cath rEd cr3h equlvrlents
Cash md cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank. shon-term deposits on call and highly liquid investments wilh an original
maturity of three months or less, which are readily convertible to known amounls ofcash and are subject to insignificant risk ofchanges in value.

Bank rccount balancas include amounls held at various commcrcial banks at the end of the financial year. For the purposes of lhese financial
shlerEnts, cash aod cash equivalents also include shon term cash impaests and advances to aulhorised public officers and which were not
surendared or accounted for al the end ofthc financial year.

o) Celpritive ligurei
WheG occessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or reconfigured 10 confofin to the required changes in
presar*ation.

p) Stltcq[ent eYeDt!

Ther! hsvc b€en no cvcnts subsequenl to the financial year end wilh a significant impact on the financial statcmmts for the year ended 30 June

11
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Summrry of slSnlflcrnt rccounting pollcles (Cortlnued)

5, Slgntlicant judgements and sources ofe$tlmstion uncertalnty
The preparalion oflhe Board's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requircs management to make judgmenls. eslimalcs and assumptions
lhal afTecl the reporl.d amounls of revenues. expenses, assets and liabilities. and the disclosure of conlingent lisbililies. al the end oflhe reporting
period. However. uncenainty about these assumptions and estimales could result in oulcomes lhat require ! matcrial adjuslment to the carying
amounl ofthe asset or liability affected in future periods.

Estlmates and assumptions
The key assumptions conceming the futu.e and other key sources of estimation uncenainty at the reponinS date. lhat have a significant risk of
causing a malerial adjustment to the carrying amounts ofassets and liabilities within the next financial year. arc described below. The Board based

its assumplions and eslimates on paEmelers available when lhe financial stalemenls were preparcd. However. exislinS ciacumslanccs and

assumptions about future developmmts may change due to markel changes or circumstances arising beyond the conrrol ofthe Board. Such changes

arc reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS I . 140

Useful lives snd rcsldurl values

The useftrl lives and residual values ofassels arc assessed using the following indicalors lo inform potential lllure usc and value from disposal

O The condition oflhe asset based on the assessmenl olexperls employed by the Board.
O The nalure oflhe asset. ils susceptibilily and adaptability lo changes in technologl and processes.

O The narure ofthe processes in which the asset is deployed.
O Availability of funding ro replace the asscr.

O Changes in lhe market in relation to thc assct.

ProvlsioIls
Provisions were raiscd and managemenl determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure of lhese estimatas of
provisions is included in Notes 20 and 2l for provisions on doubtful dcbts and Notes 26 and 2E for provisions on payables.

Provisions are measurd at the management's best estimate of thc expenditure required to settle lhe obligation at the reponing dale, and ale
discounted to present value where the effect is material. Thc Board maintains provision for bad and doubtful debts. gratuity provision, accrued

leave provision and provision for audit fee. Provision for bad and doubtful dcbts arc made when a reccivsble or the debtor is experiencing

significanl financial difficulty, in case of defaull or delinquency in interest and penallies payments and the probability that the deblor wjll cnter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.

6. Levies. fines rnd penrldes

Consumer Safely Levy
lmport le\y
Penalties

7. Llcenses ald permlts

Licenses and permits application fees

Movemenl permits

Premise licenses

E. Trrnsfers from the Covernment rnd other recurrent grrnts
(r) Uncorlditionrl grants

Operational grants from Govcmment ofKenya

Conditionil gr.ntr
Capilal expendituae grants from Covemmcnl ofKenya

2022-2023
Kshs

437.619.240
I12,687.246

6.768.290

,o2t-2t22
Xshs

187.069.919
88.624.830

5.959 t15
557,074,776,1E1.653,924

2022-2027
Kshs

1.434.000
15.939.000

1.175.000

z02t-2022
Kshs

2.028.100

1.667.000
7.492.600

tE,54t,000 t3,tt7,900

2022-2023
Kshs

2.575.000

202t-2022
Kshs

33.300.000
2.575.000 11.300.000

15.000.000

Total trsnsfers from the Government and others 2,575,000 6E,300,000
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& TrrDaflrt from the Government rnd other recurrent grants
(b) Amourt recognbed to strtemetrt of llnrDchl performrnce

Rcc-urIEnt transfers from Stale Depaflrnenl for Livc\tocl De\elopmenl

(c) Tnltfers from Minlstries, Deprrtments .nd Agencies

9. lntEc.t lncome

Intrtesl on bank deposits

2022-2023
Kshs

2021-2022
Kshs

13.300.0002.575.000

2,575,000 33J00,000

2022-2023
Kshs

11.983,367

2021-2022
Kshs

16,103,837

I1,983J67 t6,103,837

10. Ottar lncome

Misccllanmus income

2022-2023

Kshs
22.144

2021-2022
Kshs

1.082 559
22,144 t,082,559

I l. UF of Goods rnd Services

PrirlinS 8nd stationery expenses

Elcctricily and water expenses

Pctage ind courier expcnses

Bank service charSes

Prof6sional and leSal fees

Audit fces

Tclcphone and intcmet services

Uniform and clothing expenses

Cootaacted security and cleaning services

25.500,514 24.7t9,479

12. Eeployce. costi

Pcrsonnel basic salaries

G6tuily and pcnsion conlribulion
Housc allowances

Tnnsport and commuter allowance

Ac-ting.llowance and responsibilily allowances

Enleltainment allowancc
Extraneous allowance
Rclocation and leave allowance

217,385,828 205,348,560

Thc Board makes defincd contribution to a Pension Scheme administcred by Kenindia Assurance Company Lirnited and lhe National Social

Sccurity Fund (NSSF). The contributions to the Pensjon Scheme are al a rate of l0% of basic salary by employees and employer 207o and NSSF

KCls. 200 per month. The Board also provides for gratuily to conlracted staffat a rate of J l% oflhe basic salary payablc at the end oflhe contracl
pcriod. The conlributions and provision made during the year were as follows:

2022-2023

Kshs
4,998,628

2.067.95 |

1.040,100

2.678.804
754.000

7.006,811

570.008
5.860.4 t1

2021-2022
Kshs

4.895.52t
r.593.861

t.l]8.097
528.t42

4.895.240
754.000

6.094,178

541.790
4.278.648

2022-2023
Kshg

r06.713,655
2 t.895.198

17.771.500
17.063,811

880.891

9.156.000

t0.886.100
t2.796.61t

2021-2022
Kshs

101,307.857
20.115.661
34.402. t50
t6.555.217

1.150,988
8,688.000

10.096.000
12,8t2,667

Nr!E ofthe EDtlty seldlrlg the Grrnts Amount
recognised to
strtement of

Flnrnclrl
Performance

Kshs

Amount
deferred under

Deferred
Income

Kshs

Amount
recognised ln the

Capital Fund

Kshs

Total
Trrnsfers
2022/2023

Kshs

Prlor yesr
2021-2022

Kshs

Slalr f,lepanmerl for Livestock Development

Sta& Depanmcnl for Livestock Development

Statc Depa(menl for Livestock Development

Statc Depanmenl for Livestock Development

Statc Department for Livestock Development

Stalc Departmenl for Livcstock Dcvelopment

Statc De9anmenl for Livestock Development

2.575.000 2.575.000 5.550.000

17.500.000
8.325.000

8.125,000
l?.500.000
8.125.000
2,775.000

Tolal 2,575.000 2,575,000 6EJ00,000
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12. Employees costs

Gr.tulty .nd Employer contrlbutior to strff penslon

NSSF Employer contribulions
Employer pension conlributions
Graluity provision for conlractd staff

13. Board members erpenses

Mileage allowances

Travel and accommodation allowances
Lunch allowance

Sitting allowances
Chairpcrson's monthly allowance

Directors' Medical insurance

14, Depreclrtion and emortliatlon erperses

Deprecialion ofplanl, propeny and equipmenl
Amortisation of intangible assets

Amorlisalion of operaling leases

15. Rep.lrs ond mrlntenrnce

Maintenance ofplant and equipment
Maintenance of Officcs
In foamation lechnology services

16. Gcoerrl rnd Oper.tlnS expenses

Training cxpenscs

Staff medical insurance expmses
Motor vehicle and general insurance

Staffwelfare
Advenising and publicity
Rent and aates

Donalions and environmental conservation
Motor vehicle running expenses

Show expenses

Travel and accommodalion expenses

Laboratory expenses

Control ofinformal milk marketing and consumer education

Conference. exhibitions and training of slakeholde.s

Marketingand Benchmarking

Promotion of milk consumption

Product value addition
Organisalion of stakeholders

Research and Dairy development

Policy and strengheninS of regulatory frameu'ork

202r-2023
Kshs

1.000,950

19,108,706
t.785.542

202t-2022
Krht

37t.600
r8.052.86t

t.71t.200
21,t95,t9t 20.t35,66t

2022-2023
Kshs

I1.513,660

172.000
9.238.000

1.015.480
r.290.738

2021-2022

Krhr
654.040

6.670.67
66.000

5.920.000
957.000

555,504
26,722,803 U,A23.2l I

2022-2023
Kshs

35.580.899
4.558.4t I

2. t86.869

2021-2022
Krhr

32.772.462
4.E52.9E0

2 r 7i.505
42326,179 19,800,947

2022-2021
Kshs

2.7 t5.t62
5.676.858

2021-2022
Kthr

r.05s.r28
2.146.231

4 881.598 5.125 925
r3,2?5,5r8 8,927,290

2022-2023
Kshs

17.416.910

23.988.82t
2.264,088

t 3.0t2.321
9.624.9 t 3

20.5 
'2.0051.786.618

19.47 5.t97
2.0t 1.860

44.142.4t7
8.3-t 5.125

8.279,27 5

7.t90.790
r.596.950
t.210.990
r.539.618

t2,881,635

t4.t21.274

2021-2022

Krhs
r4.636,523
17.355.326

2.436.938
22,135.991
4.538. 1

20.906.872
2.849.r50

t 3.4t 3.829

16.905.804
9,927,1&

34.329.t27
4.581.112
4.874,511

9.406.000
1.04r.055

J.292.695
8.125.420

26.511.035
237,4t6B53

t4

252J93J5'
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17. Crh o! r.le of Arsets

ai! on disposal ofpropefly. plant and equipment

2022-2023
K3h!

57r.200

2021-2022

Kshs

It, Provblon for brd rnd doubtful debts

Provision for bad and doublful debls

2022-2021
Kshs

2.589.255

2021-2022
Kshs

5.672.865

19. C.* attd crsh equlvalerts

Curmt accounls

on.call dcposits
StatrHousing Mongage account

orhcr bdlances

DetlLd rnr of the c$h srd c.rh uivrlents

20. Reaalvsbles from non-erchrnge transrctions

Rcctivables from non-exchange lransactions comprises of the following:-
Levics. fines and penallies receivable

Provision for bad and doubtful debts

21. Ottcr rccelvrblas.nd prepryments

StrfrCar Loan Scheme - Current portion
St!ffHousing Mortgage Scheme - Current ponion
Dcpocits
StdT salsry advances

Ex- Staffreceivablcs
Povision for bad and doublful debts

PEDayricnls

2022-2023

Kshs
26,345,832

r58.3r8,746
9,360.991

93 r,336

2021-2022
Kshs

31 .523.7 t0
245,032.596

13.176.686

74.065
194,955,905 296,001,051

2022-2023
Kshs

207t-2022
Kshs

75.337,351
(52,128,11 4\

58.608.66t
50,r39.519)

12,608,583 t,469,1,12

2022-2023
Kshs

8.18 t. t09
1.100,795
4.678.141
2.088. 5

400.782
(400.782)

1.789.503

2021-2022
Kshs

6.969,929

2.850,982
4.678.34r
t.234.904

400,782
(400.782)

t,4t2.246
20,037,853 17,t46,402

Provision for bad and doubtful debts has been made for ex-staff receivables who owes lhe Board but have since lefl the service

Flnndd Instltutlon Account Number 2022-2023
Kshs

2021-2022
Kshs

(a) CuralDt rcaolDts
Coqci'ative Bank of Kenya Limited
KCB Bank Kenya Limited
Natioml Bank of Kenya Limited

0l 136010006600
r r03250906

01003002830700

26.471.862
(321,821\

195,793

I7.760.139
19.566,378

t96.993
Sub.totd 25345,t32 37,523,710

(b) O! - csll deposltt
KCB Bank Kenya Limired I 102653993 r58.3r8.746 245.032.596

(c) Saalf Houstnc Mortgrge Scheme
KCB Bank Kenys Limited 1233692348 9.360.991 13.176.686

(d) O'lf,cr b.l.Dcc.
Undcposited funds
MD6a Pay Bill No. 799 524

514,080
4t1.256

2.r00
7r.965

Subtot.l 931J35 74,055

194,956,905 296,007.057Toad ct.h rnd crth equivalents
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22. (r) Prope4-, pl0nt and equipment

Yesr ended 30 June 2022

Cost
As at I July 2021

Additions during lhe year

As et 30 Jun€ 2022

Crpitrl Work
in progress

Kshs
t66.446.899
9t.849.195

Motor
vehicles

Kshs
u 3.657.615
12.780.000

Totrl
rs!€tt
IGhs

457,t 03.436

I t9.506.11E

Furniture
.nd fitting

Kshs
21.185.84{i

r.809.185

Computers ind
!ccetsoriet

Kshs
54.146.191

5.42t.452

Offlce snd lrb
equiPment

Kshs
l0l.266.88-',1

7.96.086
25t,296,094 126,437.6t5 23,195.233 59,767,641 108,912,969 576,6$554

Dcpreciation .nd ilDpalrment
As al I July 2021

Chargc for thc year

As st 30 Junc 2022

91.746.265

t0.654..',l.',]8

11.911.800

t.854.051

44.898.0t7
7.292.17t

18.8t4.685
t2.97 t.900

'172312.761

12,172.162

104,400,603 16,767,E53 52,190,188 31,7E6,5t5 205,145,229

Net Book Value
As 0t.30 Junc 2022 25r,2e6,094 22.031,012 6,427J80 7.577.455 77.r26.384 371.464J25

Yerr ended 30 June 2023

Cost
As al I July 2022
Additions during the year

Disposals during the year

As .t 30 June 2023

Capltal Work
ln progress

Kshs
25r,r.296.094

Motor
vehlcles

Kshs
126.437.6t5

r3.967.100
(2.r01.625)

Fumiture
erld fifting

Kshs
I1 IS5 )',1',1

2.157.5119

accGssones

Kshs

59.767.643
I1.67-t.740

office and lab
equlpmena

Kshs
t08.9t2.969

t3.790.150

Totf,l
asliets

K!h3
576,609,554
174.t92,25t
(2.10r,625)

Computers and

390,t95J66 r38J01,290 25J52,822 71..145JE3 122,703J19 74t.700,180

Depreciation rnd impoirment
As at I July 2022
('harge for thc ycar

Disposals during the year

As rt 30 June 2023

rM.400.601
t0.923.118

(2.10r.62s)

16.767.851

1.741.609

52.190.188
1t.117.441

-r 1,7E6.5{i5

14.5 78.505
20s.r45129

35.5E0.E99
(2.r 0r.625)

l ll222Jl6 1t,509,462 60,527,635 46J65.090 238,624J03

Net Book Vrluc
As rt 30 Junc 2023 390.t95;66 25,0t0.974 6,843360 t0,917,748 1 229 5t 0,0?5,677

Capital work in progress rcfcrs lo the ongoing projcct ofthc development ofthe Nalional Dairy Laboralory Complcx at Upper Kabete. Nairobi

22. (b) Propertt-, plrnt snd equipment
lflhc property. plant and equipmenl werc staled on the hislorical cosl basis lhe amounts u'ould bc as follows

Propeita, plrnt and equlpment

Capital work in progress

Motor vehiclcs

Fumilure and llllings
Computers and accessories

Omcc and laboratorv equiDment

Totel

Propcrly. plant and equipment includcs the followinB assets thal are lllly deprccialed

Cost

Kshs

Accumulrted
deprecirtion

Kshs

Net Book
V.lue
Kshs

390.895.366
t3{i.-101.290

25.152.E22

7 r.445.383
122.703.319

1.222.1t6
18.509.462

60.527.615
46.165.090

390.1195.366

25.080.974
6.84,1.t60

10,917.748

76.t18.229

748.700.180 218,624.503 510,075.6?7

Properti, plont and equlpment Cost or
vrluetion

Kshs

Normrl rnnuil
depreciatlon chrrge

Kshs

Motor vchicles

Fumiture and liltings
Compulers and accessorics

Officc and laboralorv equiDment

94.671.040
t2.433.613

53.873.790
6.449.402

Total 161.427.845
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23, lotl[glblc .sscts
Coi

I :it Luly
Additicrs during the year

Ar l0 Junc

Arrldtatlon
Al Luly
Chate fon the ycar

At l0 June

2027-2023

K.h3
35.656.054
6.35t,484

2021-2022
Kshs

21.450.094

8,205,960
42,007,538 35,656.054

21,450.093
4.558.4t1

22.591.t t3
4,852,980

24, Ftiare Lerset

B!l&c broughl forward
Rcvrtrurion during the year

At 30 June

Amardrsdon
At Luly
Cha4c for the year

At 30 June

Net book value
At II JqnC

Nrt book value
Al 30 JlBe

32 008.504 27.450.093

2r6,500.000 2r6,500.000

2022-2023
Kshs

2r6.500.000

202t-7022
Kshs

216.500,000

9,999,034 t,205,961

I rstiblc Assc6 consist of computer soflware licences costs and website devclopmenl cosls. They are amonised on the straight-line method lo
writf thcm off over their cxpected useful life al the rate of 30olo per annun.

57,01 1,363

2.t86,869
54.835.858
2.r75,505

59,198,212 57.0t t.163

t57,301,76E r59,488,637

Finara lcases rclate to Land L.R. No. 21707 in Kabete Area, Nairobi Counly valued al Kshs. 2 15,000.000 and Plot No.205 situated in Narok

Town vrlucd at Kshs. 1,500,000. The lclse for Kabele land runs for a period of99 yesrs from I April 1996 while the lease for Narok PIol runs for

a p€rild of 99 y.ars from I April 2022. The value for both prope(ies is amonised with effect from I April 1996 and I April 2022 respectively

over 99 years bcinS Lhe period for the two leases.

25. Loot taro recelvlbles from non-erchloge trinsrctlons

Staflclr Iran Scheme - Non currenl ponion
SllffHousing MongEBe Scheme - Non cunmt ponion

26 Crrdty prot'ltlon

B.l@c at I July
Provitiqr for lhe ycar

Pa)flcnl during lhe ycar

BaldEc at 30 June

Crrdty provltlon .rc pryable.. follorvsi

Withi! onc year

Pay*lc !fter one y.ar

7022-2023
Kshs

t5.460.162
39,373.349

2021-2n22

Kshs
t4.684.000

35.448.268
54,E33.5t l 50,132,268

2022-2023
Kshs

185,380

r,785.542

2021-2022
Kih3

1.607.780
l.7r 1.200

(5.111,600)

1,970,922 l85JE0

202t-2022
Krhs

2022-2023
Kshs

74.342
1.896.580 185.380

17

1,970,922 lE5J80



KENYA DAIRY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMf,NTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

27, Trade ond other p.yables from non-erchange tr.nsactlons

Payables from non cxchange transaclions
Palroll liabilities
KMR Staff Pension

KNAC StaffPension
Alico Insurance claims
Withheld Taxcs
Remission lo National Treasury & Economic Planning

28. Current provislons

29. Deferred lncome

30, Refundrblcdeposits

Paymcnts receivcd in advance

31. Revelustion reserves

At start ofyear
Transfer of exccss dcprcciation on relalualion

2027-202!
Kshs

t20.386.934

t3.764.4t9
109,299

14 r.05 r

35.082
6.874.090

9.523.384

202t-2022
Ksh3

64.428.219

9 ,531

t09.299
34r.051

15,082
t.122.579

t9.908 686
15r.034,259 E7,526507

2022-2023
Kshs

754.000

2021-2022

Ksh.
2.048.308
t.016.000

Leave paovision
Audit fees

4,146,952 5,05,1J0t

The movement of provlslon durlng tha ycrr was as follows; Leave Provision
Kshs

2.048.308

t.344.644

Audlt fees

Kshs
Tot.l
Kshs

Balance al the beginning ofthe year

Paymenl during the ycar

Additional provision durinq the ycar

l.0r 6.000
(1.0 r6.000)

754.000

5,064.308
(1.016.000)

2.098.644
Brhnce rt the end of the yerr 3J92,952 754,000 4,14595'

National Covemment
Intemational Funders

2022-2023
Kshs

490.258.t 70

2021-2022
Kshr

490.25t.170

490,25E,170 490,25t,170

The defcrred income movemenl durlng the veer wss rs followsi N.tionrl
Governmert

Kshs

lnternrtioDal
Funders

Kshs

Totrl

Krhr
Balance brought fon ,ard

Received during the year

Recognised in the slalement offinancia! performance

490.258.170

2.575.000
(2.575.000)

490.258,170
2.575.000

(2.575.000)

Brlince cirrled for*rrd 490,258,r70 490,25t,170

2022.2023
Kshs

2021-2022
Kshs

38.835.422l0 88 t .787
30,EE1.787 3r,r35,422

20rt-2022
Kshs

t61.664. t42
(2.r75,505)

2022-2021
Kshs

159.488.637

2,1ti6.869)
t57.301.76t r59.48&537

Revaluation resen,e is as a result of valuation of land received from the Govemmenl of Kenya as grant. The lwo parcels of land werc revalucd to

Kshs. 216.500.000 by Chief Govemment Valuer. Ministry of Lands. Housing and Urban Development in the reporls daled February 2015.
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32. AccrDrlrtedsurplui
This comprises ofaccumulated surplus over lhe years.

,t sttrt ofthe year

rior y€ar adjustment
Surplus for the year

Tranrfer ofamortisation from revalualion reserves to accumulated surplus

Tr.Efcr to StaffHousing Mongage Scheme

At 30 JIDC 2023
Receilrblcs from non-exchange lmnsaclions

Other rcceivables and prepayments

Cash and cash equivalents

Fln.ndrl rsrets

At 30 Jurc 2022

Receivrblc from non-exchaoge lransactions

Ofter rcceivables and prepaymenls

Cash atld crsh equivalents

2022-2023
Kihs

53.27 5.769

1.058.154

2.186.869

2021-2022
Kshs

r00.245._r7l
(35.000.000)

854,lt9t
2.r75.505

(r 5.000,000)
56,520.792 53,275,769

P or yel.r sdjustment relates lo funding for the Staff Housing Mortgage Scheme that was offset against the capital gmnts received lo finance the

ongoing conslruction ofthe National Dairy Laboratory Complex as opposed lo Accumulated Surplus in the year ended l0 June 2018.

33. Csplrd Flrds 2022-2023 2021-2022
Kshs Kshs

25.663.556 24.603.663StaffCar Loan Scheme

Staff Housing MortSage Scheme 52 015. t l5 51.675.916
77,698,591 16,219,599

The Ctpltrl Funds movement during the yerr was ss follows; Strff C.r Lorn
Schefte

Kshs

Staff Houslng
Mortgege

Scheme

Kshr

Totsl

Kshs
Balancc brought forward
Prioa ylar interest uodea provision
Intereat camed during the year

24.603.663
1.419

1.058,474

5t.675,936

359.199

76.279.599

1.419

t,417 .6t 3
B.hlcc crrrled tonvrrd 25,663556 52,035,135 77.69E,69t

3.i. Flnud.l rlrk m.nrgement
The E@d's aclivitics expose il 10 a variety oi financial risks including credit and liquidity risks and eflects ofchanges in foreiSn currency. The
Board't ovcrall risk management prograrnrne focuses on unprcdictability of changcs in lhe business environment and sceks to minimise thc
potentid .dverse effcct of such risks on its perfo.mance by setling acceptable levels of risk. The Board does nol hedge any risks and has in place
polici6 to cnsure that timely recovery ofdebts.The Board's financial risk managemcnt objectives and policies are detailed below:

(l) Crcdlr rltk
The Bocrd has exposure to credil risk. which is rhe risk thal a counterpany will be unable to pay amounts in full whcn due. Credil risk arises from
cash aad cash equivalenls. and deposits with banks. as well as trade and other rcceivables.

ManaganE_nl assesses lhe credit quality of each customer. laking into account its financial position. past expcricnce and othcr factors. Individual
risk limib sre sel based on intemal or extemal assessment in accordance with set limils. The amounls prescnld in the slatemenl of financial
posilim are net of allowBnces for doublful receivables. estimaled by the Board's managemenl based on prior expericnce and their asscssment of
lhe cutTCnl cconomic mvironment.

The carrying amount of financial assels recorded in the financial stalcmenls representing the Board's maximum exposure to credit risk without
laking aacount of the value ofany collateBl obtained is made up as follows:

Fltr.ncld .!$ts Totrl
amount

Kshs
75 117 15?

20.438.95

Fully
Performing

Kshs
22.608.581
20.0t7.861

r94.956.905

Psst
due

Kshs
52-t28.774

400.782

Impaired

Kshs
52.128.114

400.782

t94 956 905
290,732,907 237.603351 53.r29,556 53.129.556

Tot.l
amount

Kshs
58.608,66t
t7,547.t84

296.007.057

Fully
Performing

Kshs
8.469.142

t7.t46.402
296.001.051

Past

due
Kshs

50, t 19.519
400.782

Impslred

Kshs

50. t39.519
400.782

372,t62,902
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Thc customers under the fully perlorming category are paying their debts as they conlinue t.ading. The credit risk associated wilh these receivtbles
is minimal and the allowance for uncollectible amounls that the Board has recognised in lhe financial staternenls is considered adcquate to covcr
any potentially irrecoverable amounts.

The Board has a significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due from New Kenya Co-operativc Creameries Limited considering thal the
entily is wholly owned by the Govemmenl as well as Lari Dairy Alliance and Counlr,side Dairy Limited which are under receivcrship.

The Board of Directors sets the Board's credil policies and objectives and la)r dowr paramelers within which thc various aspecrs of creiil risk
management are operaled.

(li) Llquldilv rtrk m.nrgement
Ultimale responsibility for liquidity risk management rcsts with the Board's direclors, who have buill an appropriate liquidity risk managcmcnt
fmmework for the mana8emenl oflhe Board's shon. mcdium and loog{e.m funding and liquidily management requirements. The Board manages

liquidity risk through continuous moniloring of forecasts and actual cash flows.

The lable below.epresents cash flows payable by the Board under non-derivative financial liabilities by their remaining contracrual matudties at
the reponinS date. The amoun(s disclosed in the lable are the conlraclual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal theit
carrying balances. as the impacl ofdiscounling is not siSnificant.

Prycbles TotdLeis thrn I
month

Kshs

Between l-3 Over 5 months
month3

Kshs Kshs
- 1910922

At 30 June 2023
G.atuily provision

Trade and other payablcs

Currcnt provisions

Defcrred Incomc
Relundable deposils

Payibles

At 30 June 2022
Cratuity provision

Tradc and other payables

Current provisions

Deferred lncome

Refundable deposits

151.034.259
,1. t46,952

K!hr
t.970,922

r 5 r.034.259
4.146.952

490.258. t70
10.88 r.787

490.258.r70
30.t81,787

186,062,99E 492,229,092 67E,292,090

I-ess thrn I
month

Kshs

Behrve€n l-3
months

Kshs

87.526.507
5.064.108

Over 5 months Totsl

Kshs
t85.380

K.hs
185.380

87.526.507

5.064.308
490.258.170

38.835.422
490.258.r70

18.835.422

t3t,426,237 i190, 443,550 62t,tfg,7t1

(iii) Mirket risk
The board has pul in place an intemal audit function to assisl it in assessing the risk faced by the Board on an ongoinS basis. evaluale and test lhe

design and effectivcness of its intemal accounting and opemtional conlrols.

The Board's Finance & AccounrinS Department is responsible for lhc development of detailed risk managemenl policies (subject to review and

approval by Board ofDircctors) and for the day to day implementalion ofthose policies.

There has been no change to lha Boad s exposure lo markel risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk

(a) Foreign curreDcy rlsk
The Board has transactional curency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases of Soods and ssrvices that are done in curencics other

than lhe local cunency. Invoices denominaled in foreign currencies are paid aller 30 days from the dale ofthe invoice and conversion al thc time of
payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate. However. the Board did not have any outslanding invoice denominated in loreiSll currency as

at l0 June 2021.

(b) Interest rrte rlsk
Intercst rate dsk is the risk that the entity's llnancial condition may be adversely afTected as a result ofchanSes in interest rale levels. The Board's

interesl rute risk arises from bank deposils. This exposes the Board to cash flow interest ratc risk. The interest rate risk exposure arises mainly from

interest mte mo\'ements on the Board's deposils.
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Morggemefl ofinkrest rate risk

To ttrstrage the inleresl mle risk, managemenl has endeavoured to bank with instilutions thal offer favoumble interest rales

SeBlrbiU ahalysis

Thc cnlity analyscs its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducling a sensitivity analysis. This involves determining the impact on

surphrs or deficit ofdefined rate shifts. The sensitivity analysis for inlerest rate risk assumes that all othe, variables. in panicular fo.eign exchanSe

rtlcq rcmain conslant. The analysis has been performed on lhe same basis as the prior year.

Using thc end ofthc year figures. the sensitivity analysis indicates the impact on the statement ofcomprehensive income ifcunenl floating interest

ratcs d.crease by one percentage poinl would cause a decrease in lhe surplus from Kshs. 10.581,538 to Kshs. 8.869.628. A rate decrease of 59o

would resuh in a decrease in the surplus from Kshs. 10.581.538to Kshs.2.021,990.

C.patrl rlsk Elrt|rgemerrt
Thc objective of the Board's capital risk management is to saleguard the institution's ability to continue as a going concem. The Board's capital

structure compriscs ofthe follo*ing funds:

2022-2023 202t-2022
Kshs Kshs

Revrluation reserves 15?.301.768 | 59.488.637

Accumulaled surplus 56.520.792 53.275.169

Capitrl funds 77.69E.691 76,219.599

Defqncd lncome 490.258,170 490,258,170

Tottl futrds 741,719,42t 779302,115

Letl: Cash and bank balances

Ncl Sharcholder equity

(194.956,905) (296.007.057)

586,822.5r6 483.295. r r8

Gtar{tr9 75.1lo 62.lyo

35, Rdat d Partv Brl.nces

Nao.e of relrted party relrtlonship
Th6 Bosrd regards a related party as a person or an authority with the ability to exert control individually. joinlly or lo exercise significant
inlluarcc over the Board. or vice versa. The Board is related 1o the Covemment of Kenya.who is the principal shareholder of the Board. holdinS
l0(r/o ofthe entity's equily inrercst. Other related parties include:

i) Ministry of Agriculture & Liveslock Developmcnt
ii) New Kenya Co-operalive Creameries Limited
iii) Bo6rd ofDir.c(ors
iv) Key Management

(r) Rclrted p.rty trrrsrctlons
Rsrmue received from New Kenya Co-operalive Creameries Limited
Car loans and advances granted to Key msnagement

(b) Grra$ from Government
Grlots received faom Govemmenl ofKcnya

(c) Kay m.nrgement compensrtlon

Allowsnces paid to Boa.d Members

Cqnpensalion to Managing Direcror

Comp€nsation to Key managemenl

(d) Dlc from rcl.t.d prrtles

Dua from New Kenya Co-operative Cresmeries Limited
Crt l@ns and advances due from Key management
StaffHousing Mongage Loans due from Key managemenl

2022-2023

Kshs
34.151.239
5.400.000

2021-2022

Kshs
45.289.4t6
1,240,000

2.575.000 68.300.000

,o22-2023
Kshs

26,722.803
7.200.000

25.493.918

2021-7022

Kshs
r4.823.2r r

t2.960.873

23.343.678

21

2022-2023
Krhs

51 .313,492
6.?t4.955

t9.9t5.Bt

202t-2022
Kshs

43,273.233
3.995,272

2 r.858,557
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36. Contlngent llablllties

Coun case No. IICCC No. 763 of2003 - Dairycom (K) Limitcd
Meru ELRC. No. 5 Eunice Nyaga Vs Kenya Dairy Board
CMCC No. 992 of 2014 Thika: Esther Mumbi Kamunu Vs Aganyo Evans and 2 others

1,425,153 3,425,t53

HCCC No. 763 of 2003 - Dairycom (K) Limited Vs Kenya Dairy Board and Kenya Bureau of Standards seeking compensation for lost busincss

following confiscation of imported Butter. The casc was determined in a ruling dated 24 February 2020 in favour of Dairycom (K) Limited- The
Board has provided Kshs. 2.640.000 in its Trade and olher payables from non exchange lransactions to caler for the Coun award. Consequently.
the Board membcrs are however not aware ofany other liligation arising from normal operations of the Board which may have material eIIect on

the financial position.

Meru ELRC. No. 5 Eunlce Nyrga Vs Kenya Dalry Borrd: Eunice Nyaga, an employee of Kenya Dairy Board (KDB) filed a suit against the
Board claiming thal she was illegally and unfai.ly interdicted and later demoted from the position of Branch Manager in the course of hcr
employmenl. The case was refered to thc Office of the Attomey Ceneml. llowever. there u'as no appeamncc on behalf of KDB and an ex pane
judSement uas cndorsed. The Coun found lhat Eunice had proved her case on a balance of probability and enlered judScment in her favour as

praycd as well as Kshs. 500.000 as general damages. The Board was nol served wilh the .iudgemenl and in January 2021. the Board received a

warrant to allach lhe Board's assets in Meru Branch or otherwise pay a decrelal amount lotalling Kshs. 785.153.

The Board sought an injunction for the attachment ofthe assels and the Judge sitling at Milimani Labour Coun a8reed to issuean injunction on

condition that the dccretal amount of Kshs. 785.1 53 is deposiled in lhe Coun's Account. The Board has since appealed lhe trial coun decision.

CMCC No. 992 oI 2014 Thlkr: Eslher Mumbi Kamunu Vs Aganyo Evans and 2 others (Kcnya Dairy Board): Esthcr Mumbi Kamumu is

claiming compensation for injuries sustained in a road accident which involved a vehicle which was previously owned by a Kenya Dairy Boatd
staff. The Board was enjoined in the case since it had procured the fleel insurance cover under which the car was insured prior lo the disposal and
lhe new owncr may nol havc oblained a new insurance policy for the vehicle.

b) out3tonding lnsurrncc Chlm
During the financial year ended 30 June 2018. lhe Board losl a Compuler and a Scanner through theli in ils Branch Officc in Olkalau. The lolal
cosl o[the asscls wasKshs. l0l.4T0andanetbookvaluewasnil asat ]0June2023. The Board lodged a claim with the lnsurance Company and

lhe cost ofthe losl itcms is still included in the cost clement ofPropeny. Planl and Equipment.

37, Caplr.lcommltmenrs

2022-2023
Xshs

2.640.000
785.153

2021-2022
Krhg

2.640.000
785.t53

2022-2023
Kshs

2021-2022

Krhs
ll.l7r.r55e) Authorised ..!d contracted for: Proposed ercrlion and completion oI Nalional Dairy Laboratory at Upper

Kabcte. Nairobi.

b) Authorised rrtd contrectcd for: Supply. Delivcry. Installalion. Testing and Commissioning of Low Lcvel
Water Tank al Upper Kabele. Nairobi

c) Authorised rnd contrrcted for: Supply. Installalion. Configuration. Tesring and Commissioning of an

Enterprisc ResoLrrcc PIanninB (ERP) Solurion

d) Authorised .nd contrrcted for: Proposcd ereclion and completion of Kenya Dairy Board Administralion
Block and Associaled Works at Upper Kabete. Nairobi

e) Authorised and contncted forl Supply. Delivery. Installalion. Testing and Commissioning of Eleclrical
Installation Works at Upper Kabete, Nairobi

f) Authorised rnd contncted for: Supply. Delivery. Installalion. Tcsting and Commissioning of Lills
Installation Works al Upper Kabete. Nairobi

g) Authorised rnd contracted for: Supply. Delivery. Inslallation. TestinS and Commissioning of Ceneralor

Sct Installation Works at Upper Kabete, Nairobi

h) Authorised rnd co[tracted fori Supply. Delivery, Inslallation. Testing and Commissioning of Air
Conditioning Installation works at Upper Kabete. Nai.obi

i) Authorised .Dd contrrcted for: Supply. Delivcry. Installation. Testing and Commissioning of lP CCTV
Acccss Control. IP PBX. Audio Visual and Structurcd CablinS lnstallation Works at Upper Kabelc. Nairobi

j) Authorised and cortr.cted for: Supply oflsuzu Mini Bus l0-15 Passangcrs Diesel. NQR8IK COWL

]11.230

4.981.824 I t]{57 660

25.144.406 63. t09.101

4,479,085 24.077.78t

6.599.r18 r7,570.064

1.506.124 I 1,466.289

5-333.568 t4.60t.952

I I.149.982 22.452.391

7.087.100

6a,2E3,421 l6EJ93,E3r
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3t. surllllr r.mlsslon
In accddsnce with Scction 219 (2) ofthe Public Financial Managemeni Act reSulations. regulatory entities shall remit into lhe Consolidaled Fund.

incty per centum of its surplus funds reported in thc financial statements after lhe end ofeach financial year. In line wilh this legal requirement.

the Board has made a provision lo remit Kshs. 9.523.384 (Financial Yeat 2022. Kshs. 7.694,024) to the National Treasury and Economic

Thc rorplu! Rcmlsilon ha! been computed .s follows; 2022-2023

Kshs

2021-2022
Kshs

SurphE for the period

Lesr: Allowable dcduction by the National Treasury

mo/6 cornputation (Included in Statement ofFinancial Performance)

r0.581.538

9.523.184

8.548.915

1.694.024

Sun|rr pry.ble 2022-2023
Kshs

202t-2022
Kshs

Palaiblc al the beSinning ofthc year

Provision for the year

Paid durinc the yesr

19.908.686
9.521.384

( 19.908.686)

16,137.659
1.694.024

14522.997\
Pryrblc.t thc cnd ofthe ycrr 9,523384 19,908,6t6

39, Caal Scnerated from operrtlons

SurDlus fiom operating activities

Add b8ck: Deprcciation
Amortisalion of intangible assets

Amortisation of finance leases

L6s: Gain on disposal ofnon current assets

Interest income

Adjusunenl for changes in working capital
(lnctease) / decrcase in receivables from non-exchange lransactions
(lrErcase)/decreas€ in olher receivables and prepayments

lnca!&se in tradc and othea payables from non-exchange transactions
lncllare / (decrc6se) in provisions
(Docrcase)/ increase in refundable deposits

2022-2023
Kshs

r.058.r54

2021-2022
Kshs

854.891

35.580.899
4.558,411

2.186.869
(571,200)

( n.983.367)

32.112.462
4,852,980

2,175.505

( 16.101.837)

30,829,766 24,552,001

( 14.139.44 r)
(2.89 r,46r )
63,507 .7 52

868.t86
(7.953.635)

1.026.170
15,504.270
t2.384.925
(620.092)

26.385,707

39J91,40r 54.6E0.9E0

Nel carh lloiry genarrted ln oper.tlng sctlvitles 10,221,167 79,232.981

iao, Evctt! after the reportilg perlod
Thce were no material adjusling and non-adjusting cvents a{ler the reponing period.

al, Uldlrrte HoldlnS Entity
Thc Board is a Stale Corporation established by The Dairy Industry Act Cap 336, under rhe Ministry ofAgriculture & Livestock Development. Its

ultimate parenl is lhe Govemmcnl ofKenya.

ia2, C[rcDcy
ThG financial statements are prescnted in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).
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APPENDIX I: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE BOARD

Projects
Projects implcmenled by the Board funded by thc Govemmenl

Project Tklc ProJect No. Donor Perlod/
Durrtlon

Construction of National

Laboratory Complex
Dairy I162t03100 N/A l0 Years

Donor
Commitment

Separated
reporting as

per the
tgreement

N/A No

Consolldated
ln the

flnrtrcirl
strterncntS

No

Status of Proj.ct complctlon
During the year. lhe Board conlinued with the development of the Narional Dairy Laboratory Complex at Upper Kabete. Nairobi. This project is
funded by Govemment Crants.

Project Totsl Project Cost

Kshs

Totrl
f,xpeDded to

Datc
Kshs

Completlon 7.
to drte

Conslruction of Nalional Dairy
Laboralory Complex

857.000-000 508.9ll.ll4 59.4v.

Budget

Kshs

Acturl

Kshs
509-008.t70 508.91t.l l4

Sourcer ol
funds

CoK

The ongoing project had received a total funding ofKshs.490.25{t.170 as at rhc -i0 June 202J. llowevcr the completion rate as at the close ofthe
year u'as 59.49u with total palments ofKshs. 508.911.114. In thc year ended 30 June 2023. the Board was allocatcd Kshs. 18.750.000 as capital
granl lo finance lhe project implementation and the Authorily lo Incur Expenditure (AIE) of the same was issued. I lowever. lhe exchequcr for lhe

same was not relcased. The Boundary uall. Gate llouse and Elcctric fence. civil works as well as crc.ction and completion oflhe Laboralory wing
were complctcd and handed over in the previous years. Similarly. the Board has continued lo equip lhc Laboratories and are fully in use. During
the year. the tsoard proceeded to Phase II ofthe project which entailed ereclion and completion of Kenya Dairy Board Administration Block and

Associatcd Works. The Administration Block was compleled as per the plan and the Board has sincc relmated from NSSF BuildinS lo the new

Ilead Quarters in Upper Kabcte.
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AlpENltx Il: rNTEn ENTITY TRANSFERS

, ENTITY NAME: KENYA DAIRY BAORD

' Drc$&rn of Tnrtfcr! froE the Strtc Deprnme[t for Llvotock D.velopErert

(r) lt(rrrcrt Grrotr B.Dk
ltat€Ecnt

AEouDt (K!ht) FlnrDchl ycrr to whlch thc
rmoutrt rehte

Stda brorrrner for Livestock DcvcloDmcnt 23-Sev22 2,575.000 202212023

Totel 2J75,0fl)

Thc tlorrc amount has been communicatcd to 8nd rcconcilcd with the Ministry of Agriculturc & Livcatock Development (State Dcparhcnt for
Livc-cl Dcvcloprncnt). Thc Board did not rcceivc .ny Dcvelopment Granl dudng thc year dcspitc the allocation of Kshs. 18,975,000 and

issuac of the Aulhority to Incur Expenditure (AIE).

Fhrta! Murgcr
Ketrra D.lry Borrd

Iln.ncl.l ycar to vhlch the
amouDt rclate

O) Dlvalopmert GrrDt! B.nk
ttttem!

Amount (Kihr)

2022D023for Livestock Devclopmcnt N/A
Tot.l

st"I
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KET\ryA DAIRY BOARD
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMf,NTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JIJNf, 2023

APPENDIX lll: RECORDING OF TRANSFERS FROM OTIIER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

Th. above amount hss b€en communicsted to and rccoociled with thc Ministry of Agriculture & Livcstock Devclopmenl (State Dcpan rEt fo.
Livcstock Developrhent). The Board did not rcceive any Devclopment Granl during the year despite the allocation of Kshs. 18,975,000 and
issuance ofthe Aulhority to Incur Expenditurc (AIE).

NtDe of MDA/ DoDor
Trrnsferrlng the fundr

Ditc Rccelved rt per
Brtlk Strtemert!

Nrture:
Recurrent or
DcvrlopDeDt

Totll Amoutrt
(Kshr)

Whcra rccogtrlted Toti Trurfcr
durlng thc

yerr (Xrh!)Strtemetrt ol
FhraDchl

pcrforDaDcc
(Krhrl

Deferred
Itrcome (Krhr)

Statc Dcp8ffnent for Livestock 23-S.D.22 Recurrent 2.575.000 2.575.000 2,575,000
2,575,000 2,575,000 2,575.000
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BOAND

|lroRT AND mrrANcrAL STATEMENTS
IIAR XNDED 30 JI'NE 2023

nr: CLIIIATE RELEVA|T EXIENDITUnES

dtlc Organi$tioa: Kcaya Dairy Board
Nu!fr(': 0?22 573 432

d&css: bfo@kdb.co.ke
t'CEO/MD: MErsE !t R KiboE/, OGw

So!rca
Frn&

IEplIttroc Projcct Dc*rlptlo! Prol ProJcct

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

,, l.l u
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APPENDIX V: DISASTER EXPEIVDITURf, RXFoRTING

Drter 28 September 2023

Entltr: Keoyr D.lry Borrd

Perlod to whlch report refen (FY): Ye.r eDdcd 30 Juoe 2023

Nrme of Reporthg Omcer; Ed*rrd Nyotke

Contacts of Reportlng Omcer: Em.ll: orulr+dl.acd_!4d!a!.b Tclephode! 070.1390943

Column I ColumD l! Columr III Colu.rn Iv ColumD V
Erpetrditurc lt.m

Column VI Column l/I!
Progrrmmc Sob-Progrrmm. Dlrrstcr

TyP€
C.teSory ol

dlrrster relrted
rctlvlty thrt

requl.es
expendlture

reportlng

Arttour!t
K3hs

Commrti

Livestock Resources and Market
Developmefl t Suppon Se.vices

Ken)€ Dairy Board N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A


